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CORPORATE CITIZEN

In keeping with our corporate philosophy of serv-

ing all communities in which we do business, the

Fuji Bank Group has a long and proud history of

activities for the betterment of communities

around the world.

Every year we co-sponsor the annual Traffic

Safety Campaign.  In cooperation with traffic

safety organizations and police, the campaign pro-

vides for automatic accident insurance for all first-

graders in Japan if they are involved in a traffic

accident on their way to or from school.  Now in

its thirty-fourth year, the program has covered

approximately 42 million children.

Involvement in social welfare activities by the Fuji

Bank Group and its employees is actively promoted.

A major social welfare activity of the Group is the

Fuji Memorial Foundation which is dedicated to

improve the general welfare of society.  Established

in 1980 to commemorate the Bank’s 100th anniver-

sary, the Foundation makes such contributions to

the community as donations of electric wheelchairs

and vehicles for the handicapped, and providing

funds for research and translating books into

Braille for sight impaired university students.

To encourage involvement in community service

activities by employees, the Bank has initiated

such programs as leaves of absence for employees

so that they may take part in volunteer work.

Social Welfare

Traffic Safety

Serving the Global Community In the U.S., many employees are involved in

company-sponsored volunteer activities that

include taking part in walk-a-thons, public school

education and beautification programs, and collect-

ing and distributing gifts to the poor.  In recogni-

tion of the Bank’s commitment to community

service, The Fuji Bank and Trust Company, 

a wholly-owned subsidiary located in New York

and the driving force behind the Bank’s corporate

citizen programs in the U.S., has received top

Community Reinvestment Act (CRA) ratings from

federal and state regulators for seven consecutive

years.  In 1997, The Fuji Bank and Trust Company

financed over US$25 million to nonprofit organiza-

tions serving low-income people or communities.

Through various academic activities, we play an

active role in supporting education around the

world with the view to contributing to the devel-

opment of individuals who will lead the world

into the twenty-first century.

In Japan, the Fuji Bank International

Foundation provides monthly stipends to foreign

students studying in Japanese universities.  We

have also created scholarships abroad for students

attending universities in other Asian countries.

We have also made contributions to higher edu-

cation by establishing lecture series on economics

and finance at Chicago University, Cambridge

University and the China Institute of Financing in

Beijing.

Academic Support
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Analysis of Balance Sheet

Billions of yen
March 31, 1998 1997 Change

Total Assets ......................................................................................... ¥00,000.00 ¥00,000.00 ¥0,000.00)
Loans and Bills Discounted.............................................................. )
Securities.........................................................................................

Total Liabilities .................................................................................... )
Deposits* ........................................................................................ )

Total Stockholders’ Equity .................................................................. )
Stockholders’ Equity per share (yen) .................................................... ¥00,000.008 ¥00,000..9 ¥0,000.01)

Note: * Deposits do not include NCDs.

Total assets dropped by ¥1,097.6 billion to ¥55,113.5 billion.  This reduction reflects the Bank’s asset effi-
ciency to reduce loans and cash and due from overseas banks.  Loans also decreased by ¥1,686.5 billion to
¥34,028.2 billion.  This decrease was attributed to the large amount of loan sales and securitization, the
write-off of non-performing loans, and the reduction of unprofitable loans overseas.

Total liabilities declined by ¥739.7 billion to ¥53,537.0 billion due to the decrease of deposits by ¥3,356.5
billion to ¥31,366.8 billion reflecting a reduction in loans and cash and due from overseas banks in accord
with the Bank’s asset efficiency policy.

Total stockholders’ equity fell by ¥357.8 billion to ¥1,576.4 billion owing to a net loss which stemmed
from large expenses related to the parent company’s problem portfolio.

Capital Ratio (according to the MOF guidelines which follow the BIS standards)

Billions of yen
March 31, 1998 1997 Change

Capital Ratio ................................................................................ % % %
Tier 1 Ratio ................................................................................. % % %
Total Capital ................................................................................ ¥00,000.0% ¥00,000.0% ¥0,000.0%)

Tier 1: ...................................................................................... )
Tier 2: Qualifying Capital......................................................... )

Unrealized Gains on Securities, after 55% Discount .............. )
Reserve for Possible Loan Losses, excluding Specific Reserves ... )
Land Revaluation Account .....................................................
Others .................................................................................. )

Risk-Adjusted Assets .................................................................... )
On-Balance Sheet Exposure ..................................................... )
Off-Balance Sheet Exposure ..................................................... )
Equivalent to Market Risk Amount / 8% ................................

Calculated in accordance with BIS standards, the Bank’s total capital decreased by ¥197.6 billion to
¥3,554.5 billion.  While the Bank tried to build up its Tier 1 capital by issuing US$1.6 billion in noncumula-
tive preferred securities through its subsidiary and Tier 2 capital by issuing subordinated bonds based on the
Japanese government’s financial system stabilization legislation, reduction of total capital was the result of the
loss recorded in fiscal 1997.

Risk-adjusted assets declined by ¥2,904.3 billion to ¥37,759.5 billion resulting from the Bank’s effort to
improve efficiency of asset utilization such as asset sales and securitization.  The capital ratio at year-end,
therefore, stood at 9.41%.

In addition, in May 1998, Tier 1 ratio improved by approximately 0.3% due to an increase in Tier 1 capi-
tal by approximately US$1 billion resulting from an IPO by Heller Financial, Inc., an American subsidiary of
the Bank, which was listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

The Bank will continue its efforts to improve its capital ratio through more effective risk asset manage-
ment and increase stockholders’ equity, primarily by building up its retained earnings. 

0.19
0.00

(197.6
(140.8
(56.8

(174.2
(21.2
146.9

(8.2
(2,904.3
(2,448.0

(798.1
341.9

9.22
4.79

3,752.1
1,950.6
1,801.5

174.2
141.9

—
1,485.2

40,663.8
36,251.0
4,412.8

—

9.41
4.79

3,554.5
1,809.8
1,744.6

—
120.7
146.9

1,476.9
37,759.5
33,802.9
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341.9

(1.097.6
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437.7
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(3,356.5
(357.8
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56,211.1
35,714.7
5,607.0

54,276.8
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595.0

55,113.5
34,028.2
6,044.8

53,537.0
31,366.8
1,576.4

471.5

Total Assets
(¥ Trillion)

9897969594

55.156.254.453.455.1

March 31

9897969594

March 31

Loans and Bills Discounted
(¥ Trillion)

34.0
35.7

33.7
32.233.0

Deposits
(¥ Trillion)

9897969594

31.3

34.734.435.1
36.8

March 31
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(%)

9897969594
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Earnings Performance
Earnings Performance

Billions of yen
Fiscal year 1997 1996 Change

Operating Income ............................................................................... ¥,000.00 ¥ 0,000.0 ¥(000.0)
Operating Expenses .............................................................................
General & Administrative Expenses .....................................................
Net Operating Profit ........................................................................... )
Net of Other Income and Expenses *.................................................. ) ) )
Net of Extraordinary Gains and Losses.................................................
Income (Loss) before Income Taxes .................................................... ) )
Income Taxes:

Current ...........................................................................................
Deferred.......................................................................................... ) ) )

Others-net........................................................................................... ) ) )
Net Income (Loss)............................................................................... ¥,000.00) ¥ 0,000.0 ¥(000.0)

Net Income (Loss) per Share (yen) ..................................................... ¥0,00.045) ¥ 0,000.04 ¥(00.009)

Note: * Excluding Net of Extraordinary Gains and Losses.

The Fuji Bank Group’s net operating profit fell by ¥34.4 billion from the previous year to ¥322.0 billion.
The major cause of this decrease owes to a decline in profit from money market trading and an increase in
hedging costs due to rising domestic interest rates.  Net of other income and expenses amounted to a nega-
tive figure of ¥839.3 billion.  This was attributable to the large cost the parent company incurred in its prob-
lem portfolio preparing for Japanese Prompt Corrective Action Policy issued by the Japanese Ministry of
Finance in April 1998.

As a result, loss before income taxes was ¥456.0 billion and net loss was ¥345.3 billion.

Analysis of Net Operating Profit

Billions of yen
Fiscal year 1997 1996 Change

Interest Income.......................................................................................... ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥(000.0
Interest Expenses........................................................................................
Net Interest Income................................................................................... )
Net Fees & Commissions Income ..............................................................
Net Trading Profits ....................................................................................
Net of Other Operating Income and Expenses ............................................
General & Administrative Expenses ............................................................
Net Operating Profit.................................................................................. ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥(000.0)

Net interest income was ¥542.0 billion, which declined by ¥135.3 from the previous year.  This owes
mainly to a decrease in money trading profit and an increase in hedging costs resulting from the rise in
domestic interest rates although profits from foreign subsidiaries such as Heller International Corporation
increased. 

Net fees & commissions income was ¥88.5 billion, an increase of ¥7.1 billion from the previous year.
Net of other operating income and expenses climbed by ¥63.0 billion to ¥104.6 billion.  The major 

reason for this increase was a rise in net gains on sales of bonds of the parent company.
General & administrative expenses totaled ¥470.0 billion, an increase of ¥26.2 billion.  This increase was

attributed to the depreciation of the yen, which increased general & administrative expenses in overseas
branches and subsidiaries, and to rising theValue Added Tax rate in Japan.
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56.9

104.6
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109.0

37.5
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61.2

(456.0
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FISCAL 1997 IN REVIEW (CONSOLIDATED)
Fuji Bank Group

Operating Income and
Operating Expenses

(¥ Billion)

Operating Income
Operating Expenses

9796959493

2,529
2,399

2,818

2,538
2,692

1,737
1,598

1,9011,8101,895

Fiscal Year

Income (Loss) before
Income Taxes and Others

(¥ Billion)

9796959493

(456)

99

(385)

39

64

Fiscal Year

Net Fees &
Commissions Income

(¥ Billion)

9796959493

88
8183

69
65

Fiscal Year

Net Interest Income
(¥ Billion)

9796959493

542

677
718

608629

Fiscal Year
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Overview
The Bank’s net business profit, which measures the performance of its core business activities, was ¥6.7 bil-
lion lower compared with the previous year, at ¥320.3 billion.  Although profits from bond trading
increased, they were adversely impacted by a decrease in dealing profits and an increase in hedging costs.

In fiscal 1997 the Bank made concerted efforts to reduce its problem loans.  In accordance with the afore-
mentioned Prompt Corrective Action Policy, the Bank undertook a comprehensive self-assessment of its
entire loan portfolio and made significant provisions for potential losses.  It also completed all necessary finan-
cial assistance to its affiliated financial companies and set up a special reserve to cover any potential future
losses from these companies.

This meant an increase in credit costs of ¥657.4 billion to ¥980.7 billion in fiscal 1997.  Net of securities
gains and losses rose by ¥109.4 billion compared with the previous year to ¥209.5 billion.  A contributing
factor was the decline in losses from securities devaluation which resulted from a changeover in calculating
the value of long-term securities holdings at the cost basis method from the lower of cost or market value
method.  The cost basis method was used because the Bank feels that its long-term securities holdings should
not reflect market fluctuations on a given day, in this case March 31.

The credit costs associated with the above-mentioned problem loans resulted in the posting of a full-year
net loss of ¥518.7 billion.  As a result, the Bank has provided adequate reserves to cover its problem loan
portfolio.  It was decided to make an annual dividend payment of ¥8.50 per common share and ¥7.50 per
preferred share as originally proposed.

Mark-to-market accounting was introduced in March 1997 for trading accounts.

Earnings Performance
Earnings Performance

Billions of yen
Fiscal year 1997 1996 Change

Net Interest Income* (A).................................................................................. ¥(0,000 ¥(000.0 ¥(00.00)
Net Fees & Commissions Income (B) ...............................................................
Net Trading Profit ............................................................................................
Net of Other Operating Income and Expenses (C) ...........................................
Gross Profit (A+B+C) (D) ................................................................................ )

Domestic ...................................................................................................... )
International ................................................................................................. )

Adjusted General & Administrative Expenses** (E)...........................................
Transfer to General Reserve for Possible Loan Losses (F) ................................. ) )
Net Business Profit (Gyomu Juneki) (D-E-F) (G) .......................................... )
Net of Other Income and Expenses (H)............................................................ ) ) )
Income (Loss) before Income Taxes (G+H) ...................................................... ) )
Provision for Income Taxes ..............................................................................
Net Income (Loss) ............................................................................................ ¥(0,000) ¥(000.0 ¥(0,000)
Net Income (Loss) per Share (yen) .................................................................... ¥(0,0009) ¥(000.04 ¥(0,0003)

Notes: **  Interest expenses on money held in trust is deducted from interest expenses and included in net of other
income and expenses.

Notes: ** Adjusted general & administrative expenses represents expenses after deducting nonrecurring expenses,
which is included in net of other income and expenses, from general and administrative expenses.

Net Business Profit (Gyomu Juneki)
Net business profit was ¥320.3 billion, a decline of ¥6.7 billion compared with the previous year mainly due
to the decrease in gross profit.

(96.8
0.3

18.5
45.0

(32.8
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(23.1
4.8

(31.0
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601.1
64.6

—
37.2

702.9
457.4
245.5
373.6

2.1
327.1

(272.3
54.7
0.7

53.9
18.5

504.2
65.0
18.5
82.3

670.1
447.7
222.3
378.5
(28.8
320.3

(835.1
(514.7

3.9
(518.7
(179.1

Fiscal Year

Net Business Profit
(Gyomu Juneki) and Net Income

(¥ Billion)

9796959493

320327

466

288

362

(518)
53

(429)
3426

Net Business Profit (Gyomu Juneki)
Net Income

Fiscal Year

9796959493

Gross Profit and Adjusted
General & Administrative Expenses

(¥ Billion)

670702

829

656
721

378373361366357

Gross Profit
Adjusted General  & 
Administrative Expenses

FISCAL 1997 IN REVIEW (NON-CONSOLIDATED)
The Fuji Bank, Limited
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Gross Profit
Breakdown of Gross Profit

Billions of yen
Fiscal year 1997 1996 Change

Net Interest Income.......................................................................................... ¥000.0) ¥000.0) ¥(00.0)
Domestic ...................................................................................................... )
International ................................................................................................. )

Net Fees & Commissions Income .....................................................................
Domestic ......................................................................................................
International .................................................................................................

Net Trading Profit ............................................................................................
Domestic ......................................................................................................
International .................................................................................................

Net of Other Operating Income and Expenses..................................................
Domestic ......................................................................................................
International .................................................................................................

Gross Profit....................................................................................................... ¥0,000) ¥0,000 ¥(,000)

Analysis of Interest Income

Billions of yen 
Average Balance Yield

Fiscal year 1997 1996 Change 1997 1996 Change

Domestic:
Interest Earning Assets................................. ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0 ¥0,000.0) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00)%

Loans ...................................................... )
Investment Securities .............................. )

Interest Bearing Liabilities ........................... ) )
Deposits*................................................ )

Interest Margin ........................................... )

International:
Interest Earning Assets................................. )

Loans ......................................................
Investment Securities ..............................

Interest Bearing Liabilities ........................... )
Deposits*................................................ )

Interest Margin ........................................... )

Total:
Interest Earning Assets................................. )

Loans ...................................................... )
Investment Securities ..............................

Interest Bearing Liabilities ........................... )
Deposits*................................................ )

Interest Margin ........................................... % % )%

Note: * Deposits do not include NCDs.

1. Net Interest Income
Net interest income fell by ¥96.8 billion to ¥504.2 billion.

Domestic operations (yen-denominated transactions at domestic offices) posted net interest income of
¥350.2 billion, a year-on-year decrease of ¥36.8 billion.  Two factors contributed to this decrease.  The first
factor is that interest margin (difference between interest earning asset yields and interest bearing liabilities
yields) fell by 0.13% compared with the previous year although the average balance on interest earning assets
almost stayed the same, this accounted for a decrease of ¥7.6 billion from the previous year.  The second fac-
tor is that the method of accounting of profits was changed by introducing the mark-to-market accounting
method.

In the case of interest earning assets, housing loans continued to increase, but stagnant growth in domestic
yen-denominated high-quality loans to companies and other factors meant that average loans outstanding
rose by ¥644.3 billion compared with the previous year.  The average balance for investment securities also
increased by ¥151.4 billion.

Interest margin shrank by 0.13% compared with the previous year to 1.14%.  The reason for this was that
the year-on-year decline in yields on lending (-0.16%) was larger than the fall in yield on deposits (-0.09%),
and that the Bank went ahead with hedging against future increases in interest rates.

In the area of international operations (foreign currency transactions at domestic offices and transactions at
overseas branches), net interest income fell by ¥60.0 billion to ¥153.9 billion.  The main cause of the
decrease was the decline in profit from money market trading and the influence from introducing the mark-
to-market accounting method although the average loan balance increased by 405.9 billion compared with
the previous year due to the depreciation of the yen.
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0.51
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—
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2. Net Fees and Commissions Income
Net fees and commissions income came to ¥65.0 billion, an increase of just ¥0.3 billion compared with the
previous year.

Domestic net fees and commissions was ¥39.0 billion, which was an increase of ¥0.2 billion.  Remittance
charges increased as a result of continuing efforts to increase the number of money transfer transactions.

International net fees and commissions income climbed to ¥25.9 billion, which was an increase of ¥0.1
billion as a result of an increase in project finance, syndication and other loan-related fee income in spite of
the decrease in fees and commissions on derivatives-related transactions due to the introduction of the mark-
to-market accounting method.

Breakdown of Trading Profit

Billions of yen
Fiscal year 1997 1996 Change

Domestic:
Net Profit from Trading Securities and Derivatives ....................................... ¥(0.0 ¥ — ¥(0.0
Net Profit from Trading-related Securities and Derivatives............................ (0.5) — (0.5)
Net Profit from Trading-related Financial Derivative Transactions ................ 1.6 — 1.6
Others .......................................................................................................... 2.7 — 2.7

Total Domestic......................................................................................... 3.9 — 3.9
Internatioanl:

Net Profit from Trading Securities and Derivatives ....................................... — — —
Net Profit from Trading-related Securities and Derivatives............................ (0.0) — (0.0)
Net Profit from Trading-related Financial Derivative Transactions ................ 14.5 — 14.5
Others .......................................................................................................... 0.0 — 0.0

Total International .................................................................................... 14.5 — 14.5
Total:

Net Profit from Trading Securities and Derivatives ....................................... 0.0 — 0.0
Net Profit from Trading-related Securities and Derivatives............................ (0.5) — (0.5)
Net Profit from Trading-related Financial Derivative Transactions ................ 16.2 — 16.2
Others .......................................................................................................... 2.7 — 2.7

Total ........................................................................................................ ¥18.5 ¥ — ¥18.5

3. Net of Trading Profits
Net of trading profits, which is a mark-to-market accounting method introduced for trading accounts, was
¥18.5 billion in fiscal 1997.  Domestic net of trading profits was ¥3.9 billion mainly due to interest on com-
mercial paper and other debt purchased, while international net of trading profits was ¥14.5 billion mainly
due to unrealized gains of derivatives. 

Before introducing the net of trading profits, profits-related trading accounts, such as trading securities and
derivatives, were appropriated in several accounts, such as net interest income.  From fiscal 1997, trading
accounts with unrealized gains and losses are accounted in net trading accounts due to the introduction of the
mark-to-market accounting method.

Breakdown of Net of Other Operating Income and Expenses

Billions of yen
Fiscal year 1997 1996 Change

Domestic:
Net Profit from Foreign Exchange Transactions............................................ ¥(000.() ¥000.0) ¥(000.0
Net Profit from Sales of Bonds......................................................................
Others .......................................................................................................... )

Total Domestic.........................................................................................

International:
Net Profit from Foreign Exchange Transactions............................................
Net Profit from Sales of Bonds......................................................................
Others .......................................................................................................... ) )

Total International ....................................................................................

Total:
Net Profit from Foreign Exchange Transactions............................................
Net Profit from Sales of Bonds......................................................................
Others .......................................................................................................... ) )

Total ........................................................................................................ ¥(000.() ¥000.0) ¥(000.0

—
27.8
(4.9
22.8

10.9
13.7
(2.5
22.2

10.9
41.5
(7.4
45.0

—
30.5
1.0

31.6

6.6
5.6

(6.6
5.6

6.6
36.2
(5.6
37.2

—
58.4 
(3.9)
54.4

17.6 
19.3 
(9.1)
27.8

17.6 
77.8 

(13.1)
82.3

Fiscal Year

Net of Other Operating
Income and Expenses

(¥ Billion)

9796959493
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4. Net of Other Operating Income and Expenses
Net of other operating income and expenses increased by ¥45.0 billion compared with the previous year to
¥82.3 billion.  Domestic net of other operating income rose by ¥22.8 billion to ¥54.4 billion primarily
because income from government and other bond-related transactions increased by ¥27.8 billion compared
to the previous year due to rising bond prices with long-term interest rate falling during the fiscal year.

Internationally, net of other operating income and expenses increased by ¥22.2 billion compared with the
previous year to ¥27.8 billion mainly due to an increase in income from government and other bond-related
transactions and an increase in income from foreign currency dealing.

Adjusted General and Administrative Expenses
Breakdown of Adjusted General & Administrative Expenses

Billions of yen
Fiscal year 1997 1996 Change

Personnel Expenses ........................................................................................... ¥000.0 ¥000.0 ¥00.0
of which Wages and Allowances ................................................................... )

Non-Personnel Expenses ..................................................................................
Taxes ................................................................................................................
Adjusted General & Administrative Expenses .................................................... ¥000.0 ¥000.0 ¥00.0

Although bank-wide efforts were made to rationalize operations and increase efficiency, overall expenses
rose by ¥4.8 billion to ¥378.5 billion.  This increase was attributable to taxes which increased by ¥3.5 billion
due to the hike in the VAT and to the depreciation of the yen which increased expenses in the overseas
operations.

Although the Bank continued to review wages and allowances and took steps to rationalize personnel lev-
els, personnel expenses increased by ¥0.8 billion to ¥158.5 billion owing to an increase in personnel expenses
in overseas branches as a result of the depreciation of the yen.  At year-end, the number of employees had
fallen by 553 to 14,615.

While exhaustive efforts were made to reduce non-personnel expenses, non-personnel expenses increased
by ¥0.4 billion to ¥191.1 billion mainly due to the depreciation of the yen which increased non-personnel
expenses in overseas branches.

Other Income and Expenses, Income before Income Taxes, Net Income
Breakdown of Other Income and Expenses

Billions of yen
Fiscal year 1997 1996 Change

Net of Securities Gains and Losses..................................................................... ¥0(00.0 ¥(000.0 ¥(000.1
Sales Gains ....................................................................................................
Devaluation ..................................................................................................

Expenses Relating to Portfolio Problem............................................................
Write-offs .....................................................................................................
Specific Reserves ..........................................................................................
Losses Incurred from Sales to CCPC.............................................................
Transfer to Reserve for Possible Losses on Sales of Loans .............................. )
Transfer to Reserve for Specific Borrowers under Support ............................
Losses Incurred from Supporting Certain Borrowers .....................................
Losses Incurred from Sales of Loans...............................................................

Net of LDC-related Gains and Losses................................................................
Disposal of Unrealized Losses of Investment Funds............................................
Other Losses ..................................................................................................... )
Net of Other Income and Expenses .................................................................. ¥(000.0) ¥(000.0) ¥(000.0)

Total of other income and expenses dropped by ¥562.8 billion over the previous year to stand at ¥(835.1)
billion.  This was as a result of the Bank working aggressively to make necessary disposals of its bad loan portfolio.
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1. Net of Securities Gains and Losses
Net of securities gains and losses climbed by ¥109.4 billion over the previous year to ¥209.5 billion.  In 
addition to the sales gains on securities of ¥268.6 billion, a contributing factor was the fall in the loss on the
devaluation of securities of ¥134.0 billion to ¥56.9 billion resulting from this year’s changeover to the cost
basis method to value securities from the lower of cost or market value method.

2. Expenses Relating to Portfolio Problem
To maintain and enhance the quality of its assets, the Bank has continued to work aggressively to make nec-
essary disposals.  With the introduction of the Prompt Corrective Action Policy in April 1998, the Bank
introduced a new, more precise internal system for classifying loan assets, undertook a comprehensive self-
assessment of its entire loan portfolio, and made wide-ranging and proactive provisions for any potential
losses.  The Bank also reduced its problem loans through an aggressive program of pursuing recoveries on its
loans, write-offs, and sales of bad loans to such entities as the Cooperative Credit Purchasing Company
(CCPC).  As a result, the Bank was able to increase the amount of credit costs by ¥657.4 billion compared to
the previous year to ¥980.7 billion. 

Credit costs for the Bank’s problem loan portfolio include loan write-offs which rose ¥43.1 billion com-
pared to the previous year to ¥68.9 billion, transfers to specific reserves for possible loan losses which climbed
¥192.6 billion to ¥332.7 billion, losses on sales of loans collateralized by real estate to the CCPC which rose
¥ 119.6 billion to ¥ 202.7 billion, and other sales losses which stood at ¥3.3 billion. 

The Bank also completed all necessary financial assistance to its affiliated finance companies, and set up
special reserves to cover any potential future losses from these companies.  As a result, losses incurred from
supporting certain borrowers rose ¥191.1 billion over the previous year to ¥226.6 billion, and ¥122.3 billion
was transferred to the newly-established reserve for specific borrowers under support. 

The Bank transferred ¥24.0 billion to the reserve for possible losses on sales of loans to make the necessary
provisions against possible future losses arising in connection with the value of loans collateralized by real
estate that were sold to the CCPC. 

The loss on mutual funds of ¥ 57.5 billion represents provisions against the latent loss in mutual funds
which is due to fall in fiscal 1998 or later. 

For the above reasons, net loss was ¥518.7 billion, which included ¥45.6 billion from gains on the disposal
of real estate as part of the ongoing review of the Bank’s real estate holdings.  Net loss per share was ¥179.19.

Balance Sheet
Analysis of Balance Sheet (Major Breakdown)

Billions of yen
March 31, 1998 1997 Change

Assets
Cash and Due from Banks.......................................................................... ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0 ¥(0,000.0)
Call Loans .................................................................................................. )
Bills Purchased ........................................................................................... )
Commercial Paper and Other Debt Purchased ........................................... )
Trading Assets ............................................................................................
Trading Account Securities ........................................................................ )
Money Held in Trust ................................................................................. )
Securities....................................................................................................
Loans and Bills Discounted......................................................................... )
Foreign Exchange ......................................................................................
Other Assets...............................................................................................
Premises and Equipment ............................................................................
Customers’ Liabilities for Acceptances and Guarantees................................ )
Total Assets ................................................................................................ ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0 ¥(0,000.0)

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Deposits ..................................................................................................... ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0 ¥(0,000.0)
NCDs ........................................................................................................ 00,000.0 00,000.0 (0,000.0)
External Debts* .........................................................................................
Trading Liabilities ......................................................................................
Foreign Exchange ......................................................................................
Bonds ........................................................................................................
Convertible Bonds and Notes ....................................................................
Other Liabilities .........................................................................................
Reserve for Possible Loan Losses ................................................................ )
Reserve for Retirement Allowances ........................................................... )
Reserve for Possible Losses on Sales of Loans .............................................
Reserve for Specific Borrowers under Support ...........................................
Other Reserves .......................................................................................... )
Acceptances and Guarantees ....................................................................... )
Land Revaluation Account.........................................................................
Total Liabilities .......................................................................................... ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0 ¥(0,000.0)

Total Stockholders’ Equity ......................................................................... ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0 ¥(0,000.0)

Note: * The sum of borrowed money, bills sold and call money.

Assets
Total assets decreased by ¥978.7 billion compared with the previous year to ¥51,088.0 billion.  This reflects
the effort made to enhance the quality of the Bank’s loan portfolio and utilize assets, such as loan sales and
securitization, reduction of unprofitable loans and on-balance trading assets more efficiently.

Mark-to-market accounting was introduced in March 1997 for trading assets.

Loans
Breakdown of Loans

Billions of yen
March 31, 1998 1997 Change

Domestic Offices* (A) ........................................................................ ¥23,442.0 ¥00,000.0 ¥(0,000.0
of which Housing Loans..................................................................
Manufacturing.................................................................................
Wholesale & Retail, and Food Services ...........................................
Real Estate ......................................................................................
Services ........................................................................................... )

% Loans to Small and Medium-sized Companies ................................. % % %)
Overseas Branches and Japan Offshore Market Account (B) ................ )

Commerce and Industry.................................................................. )
Total Loans and Bills Discounted (A+B) ............................................. ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0 ¥(0,000.0)%

Note: * “Domestic Offices” covers yen-denominated loans and foreign currency-denominated loans made by 
domestic branches.
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Total loans and bills discounted at year-end decreased by ¥2,006.7 billion compared with the previous
year to ¥32,030.5 billion.  This reduction was due to loan sales and securitization, write-off of non-perform-
ing loans and reduction of unprofitable loans overseas in spite of enhancement of housing loans.  An analysis 
of lending by domestic branches according to industrial sector reveals that services accounted for 18.6%,
wholesaling, retailing and restaurants for 15.6%, manufacturing for 12.9%, and real estate for 9.7%.  Compared
with the previous year, therefore, services and real estate saw their share of loans decline by 1.2% and 0.2%,
respectively, while manufacturing increased by 1.4%.  Loans to such borrowers as individuals and small and
medium-sized enterprises increased by ¥97.2 billion to account for 75.7% of loans by domestic branches.

Problem Loan Portfolio
Breakdown of Problem Loans

Billions of yen
New 

Current Standard Stadard
March 31, 1998 1997 Change 1998

Loans to Borrowers in Bankruptcy Proceedings .................... ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0% ¥(000.0))%
Loans Past Due for over Six Months ..................................... )

Total (A) ........................................................................... )
% A to Total Loans and Bills Discounted .......................... 9% 7% 8%) 9%

Loans Past Due for over Three Months .................................
Restructured Loan ................................................................

Renegotiated Loans ........................................................... )
Loans to Companies under Support Programs .................... )
Total (B) ........................................................................... ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0 0(¥,000.0) ¥0,000.0
% B to Total Loans and Bills Dicounted............................. 0% 0% 0%) 8%

An even greater effort was made this year by the Bank to reduce the level of its problem loans setting up
proactive loan recovery efforts such as aggressively collecting, writing-off and selling problem loans.  As a
result, the Bank was able to reduce the level of its problem loans by ¥404.2 billion compared with the previ-
ous year, with the balance of loans to borrowers in bankruptcy proceedings, loans past due for six months or
more and renegotiated loans at fiscal year-end standing at ¥257.5 billion, ¥733.7 billion and ¥186.3 billion,
respectively.  Accordingly, the ratio of these loans to the Bank’s total loan portfolio improved by 0.97% from
the previous year to 3.68% at the end of March 1998.

By completing all necessary financial assistance to our affiliated finance companies, the balance of our loans
to companies under support programs decreased ¥216.9 billion compared with the previous year to stand at
¥40.7 billion.

As a result of the above measures, the balance of our disclosed problem loans decreased ¥621.2 billion
compared to the previous year to ¥1,218.4 billion.  The ratio of these loans to the Bank’s total loan portfolio
stood at 3.80% at the end of fiscal 1997, an improvement of 1.60% from the previous year.  

Problem Loan Portfolio under New Standard
From this year onwards, in response to calls for more disclosure of financial information by banks, the Bank
disclosed details of its problem loans referring to guidelines set down by the U.S. Securities Exchange
Commission.  The expanded information of the Bank covers loans past due for three months or more, in
which the payment of principal or interest is delayed three months or more from the day following the date
agreed as the payment date, and restructured loans*, which are loans provided to support the rehabilitation of
certain borrowers, ensuring the recovery of the loan by amending existing terms and conditions to reflect
more adequately the borrower’s present circumstances.  While the above problem loans represent loans
which require cautious management, these loans also include those with a minimal risk of becoming bad
loans or those with a possibility of recovery by supporting the rehabilitation of the borrower.  Loans coming
under these categories cannot be classified as problem loans under previously used criteria.  Hence, our cur-
rent problem loans under the new standard at fiscal year end amounted to ¥1,692.7 billion. 

* Restructured loans: Under the new standard for disclosing problem loans, an additional item, restructured loans, has
been established.  Restructured loans are loans provided to support the rehabilitation of certain
borrowers, ensuring the recovery of funds lent by amending existing terms and conditions to
reflect more adequately the borrower’s present circumstances.

Cash and Due from Banks
Cash and due from banks decreased by ¥1,570.9 billion to ¥2,749.9 billion due to a sharp reduction in due
from banks in the area of international operations resulting from the efficient use of assets.

Trading Assets  
In fiscal 1997, the Bank introduced the mark-to-market accounting method.  This resulted in trading assets,
such as trading securities, derivatives and hedging transactions amounting to ¥2,273.8 billion.
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Liabilities
In fiscal 1997, three new accounting categories were established.  They are, trading liabilities, as a result of
the introduction of the mark-to-market method, a reserve for specific borrowers under support which
reflects future support for affiliated non-bank financial companies, and land revaluation based on a law con-
cerning land revaluation.

Deposits 
Total deposits decreased by ¥3,077.9 billion from the previous year to ¥31,316.7 billion.  While domestic
deposits increased, international deposits decreased due to the reduction of international loans and due from
banks.  Negotiable certificates of deposit (NCDs) decreased by ¥758.5 billion from the previous year to ¥3,125.9
billion.

External Debts
External debts (defined as the sum of call money, bills sold and borrowings) increased by ¥209.5 billion to
¥5,596.2 billion.  Subordinated debts increased by ¥111.4 billion to ¥1,842.2 billion due to funding to build
up Tier 2 capital.

Reserves for Possible Loan Losses, etc.
Breakdown

Billions of yen
March 31, 1998 1997 Change

General Reserve......................................................................................... ¥0000.0 ¥0000.0 ¥00.00)
Specific Reserves........................................................................................ )
Reserve for Specific Borrowers under Support ...........................................
Reserve for Possible Losses on Sales of Loans .............................................
Reserve for Loans to LDCs ........................................................................ )

Total.................................................................................................. ¥0000.0 ¥0000.0 ¥00.00

Reserve for possible loan losses consists of a general reserve for possible loan losses, a specific reserve for pos-
sible loan losses, a reserve for specific borrowers under support, a reserve for possible losses on sales of loans,
and a reserve for loans to LDCs. It amounted to ¥1,032.5 billion, which is an increase of ¥10.0 billion from
the previous year. 

This resulted from a reversal from the reserve for possible losses on certain doubtful loans in connection
with the reduction of our problem loans.  The Bank also made provisions for any potential losses deemed
necessary as a result of its comprehensive self-assessment of its loan portfolio, setting up special reserves to
cover any future potential losses from its affiliated companies, and also from making provisions against possi-
ble future losses arising in connection with the value of loans collateralized by real estate that were sold to the
Cooperative Credit Purchasing Company. 

Stockholders’ Equity
Stockholders’ Equity

Billions of yen
March 31, 1998 1997 Change

Total Stockholders’ Equity........................................................................ ¥ ,000.00 ¥ ,000.00 ¥ (00.00)
Stockholder’s Equity per Share (yen)......................................................... 2 8 6)
Dividends per Share of Common Stock (yen) ........................................... 0 0
Dividends per Share of Preferred Stock (yen) ............................................ ¥0 ¥0,000.005 ¥000.005

Total stockholders’ equity declined by ¥531.2 billion to ¥1,140.7 billion, due to the posting of a net loss
of ¥518.7 billion.  The unappropriated loss at the end of fiscal 1997 was not carried forward into fiscal 1998
which was covered by deducting voluntary reserves.

Stockholders’ equity per share stood at ¥321.22, a decline of ¥183.36 compared with the previous year.

Dividend Policy
Fuji Bank is always aware that it must first satisfy its shareholders by providing stable dividend payments uti-
lizing its financial and management resources in the most effective way to consolidate its retained earnings.
This fiscal year the Bank incurred a large net loss as a result of taking write-offs and setting aside reserves
deemed necessary.  However, the Bank has been able to provide appropriate reserves on its problem loan
portfolio, including those pertaining to its affiliated financial companies, and it can now work on the job of
recovering its financial soundness.  An annual dividend payment per share of common stock was ¥8.50, while
an annual dividend payment per share of preference stock was ¥7.50.

The Japanese economy still faces some difficult times ahead.  However, the Bank will continue to pursue
strengthening and building its financial fundamentals, taking advantage of the many new profit opportunities,
while at the same time maintaining stable regular dividend payments to shareholders in the future.
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As a result of rapid advances in financial technology and major changes in
the business environment, the risks inherent in banking operations are
swiftly becoming more diverse and complex. As a result, it is more
important than ever that bank management identify and carefully manage
various types of risks including credit risk and market risk. Fuji Bank has
made risk management one of its key managerial priorities. 

Through the inspections and supervision carried out by our
Inspection Division and external organizations such as the financial
supervisory authorities, we are establishing organizational procedures
that continually check the efficiency of our risk management systems.
We also carry out comprehensive inspection of our entire risk manage-
ment system at least once a year. 

To facilitate statistical methods for measuring various types of risk
on the basis of common criteria, we reorganized the former Market
Risk Assessment Division into the Risk Assessment Division in January
1998. The new division follows a neutral approach to evaluating mar-
ket risk and credit risk as well.

I. Credit Risk
Credit risk is associated with a wide range of operations, from lending
and market transactions in products such as derivatives to settlements.
We are striving to ascertain all possible sources of risk and devise
appropriate means of dealing with them.  The most important issue in
the area of credit risk management is ensuring the soundness of loan
assets, which account for the lion’s share of credit risk.  We take a dual
approach to this issue.  On the one hand, we assess and monitor each
individual loan transaction; on the other, we manage the entire loan
asset portfolio on an all-inclusive basis.

Overall control of credit risk management is in the hands of the Loan
Strategy Committee chaired by the President and CEO. This commit-
tee determines lending strategy and policies, and monitors the entire
loan portfolio.  At the same time, the Credit Planning Division and the
Credit Division for Overseas Business specialize in devising the means
of assessing and managing individual loan transactions, and for planning
and developing methods for analyzing our overall loan portfolio.

1. Credit Assessment and Monitoring of Individual
Transactions

Each proposed loan transaction is carefully assessed for risk and prof-
itability by the branch in charge. If the amount involved exceeds the
branch manager’s authority, the appropriate credit division at Head
Office carries out the assessment.  At this stage, active use is made of
the in-house credit rating system*, which provides the standards
needed for assessing the risk and profitability of each loan proposal as
well as the tools for monitoring the transaction after its execution.

Within the head office credit divisions, specialist departments are set
up to deal with large and medium-sized enterprises by type of industry
and operational scale, and with individuals and smaller businesses by
region.  The credit divisions also provide branches with appropriate
advice in a timely manner according to the characteristics of the cus-
tomers and markets involved.  The Credit for New Business
Department, for example, was set up to specialize in sectors where tech-
nological innovation is progressing rapidly. 

Overseas, credit divisions have been established in New York and
London with responsibility for America and Europe, respectively,
while credit personnel have been assigned to Hong Kong who work
with head office credit divisions to deal with the Asian region.  These
staffers engage in information-gathering activities in connection with
the laws, commercial customs, and political and economic conditions
in their respective jurisdictions, and use this information as the basis 
for carefully focused credit assessment and management activities in
each region.

We have also established departments at home and abroad to carry
out industrial surveys designed to gather and analyze information on
sectoral trends, and new products and technologies.

Nurturing human resources to support this credit evaluation system
is extremely important.  In addition to making efforts to train specialists
in assessing loans, the management team is paying particular attention
to implementing practical training programs according to the type of
specialization involved.

*In-house credit rating system
Our in-house credit rating system has 16 grades and in principle is
applied to all loan assets other than housing loans among others.  The
marketing or credit division in charge prepares rating studies on the
basis of a manual, and the Credit Assessment & Auditing Department,
which is completely independent of our credit divisions, confirms the
validity of the results.  In recent years, reviews have been conducted at
least once every twelve months.

This system provides infrastructural support for the assessment and
management of individual transactions, as well as the base for managing
the loan portfolio and measuring credit risk.  In addition, our credit rat-
ings are applied to the pricing process for individual cases.

The system has been revised and upgraded repeatedly, and now pro-
vides an objective indication of the credit risk associated with our loan
assets. We have also endeavored to ensure ample consistency between
it and the ratings of rating agencies, self-assessment systems and the
asset classifications used by the financial supervisory authorities.

RISK MANAGEMENT

2. Portfolio Management
So far, we have looked at the assessment and management of individual
transactions.  It is also extremely important to ensure the overall
soundness of loan assets by analyzing and managing the loan portfolio,
which is the aggregate of all individual loans.

In order to ensure that credit risk held by the Bank is kept at an
appropriate level, the Loan Strategy Committee monitors and 
periodically analyzes the entire loan portfolio by business sector,
region, in-house credit rating and other criteria.

(1) Breakdown of Loan Portfolio by Business Sector
Generally speaking, we do not specify upper limits on outstanding
loans in advance according to business sector.  We do, however, 
monitor the makeup of our portfolio constantly to ensure that there 
is no bias toward any specific industrial sector and to avoid any adverse
changes in portfolio structure.

Note: Domestic offices (excluding loans booked in the Japan offshore market)

(2) Breakdown of Loan Portfolio by Region
Through the country risk/exposure system, upper limits are set for
each country for all credit transactions, including loans. This upper
limit is reviewed at least once every six months to reflect conditions in
the world economy and political and economic conditions in each
country.

As of the end of March 1998, loans to Asian countries were as
shown below in Table 1. Affiliates of Japanese companies accounted
for over 45 % of loans to the private sector.

Almost all of the loans to non-Japanese borrowers are for project
financing and to the largest business groups in each country.

Note: Non-consolidated basis.
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[Table 1] Loans to Asian Countries

Millions of U.S. dollars
Public Financial Private Sector

Balance Sector Institutions Total Japanese (% of total) Non-Japanese

South Korea ..................................................... $00,885 $023 $162 $0,699 $0,045 (06.5%) $0,654
Indonesia .......................................................... 1,415 127 98 1,189 541 (45.5%) 648
Thailand ........................................................... 1,816 76 132 1,608 845 (52.6%) 762
Hong Kong ...................................................... 3,494 3 131 3,358 1,423 (42.4%) 1,935
Singapore ......................................................... 821 8 11 801 651 (81.3%) 150
Malaysia ............................................................ 604 193 — 410 143 (35.0%) 267
China ............................................................... 1,541 119 278 1,144 589 (51.5%) 555
Philippines ........................................................ 312 34 — 277 95 (34.5%) 182

Total .......................................................... $10,890 $584 $815 $9,491 $4,336 (45.7%) $5,155
Note: Non-consolidated basis.

3. Measuring Credit Risk
We have been tackling the issue of measuring credit risk from several
viewpoints: promoting integrated risk management (combining credit
and market risk), and portfolio management. Now the credit risk asso-
ciated with virtually all credit transactions (including derivative and
other off-balance sheet transactions) is measured on a daily basis.  

We measure and analyze credit risk according to such criteria as transac-
tion type, rating, region and business sector, and submit reports on our
findings to top management. The information thus derived is reflected
in managerial decisions relating to integrated risk management.
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Our market risk management structure has the following key charac-
teristics:

q Establishment of an independent risk management division.
w Sophisticated and advanced methodologies and systems for man-

aging market risk.
e Basic risk management policy determined by the Board.
r Risk limits determined by the Board.
t Regular reporting to the Board and senior management.

① Establishment of an independent risk management 
division.

In 1994, we became the first Japanese bank to set up the Market Risk
Assessment Division (now the Risk Assessment Division), an inde-
pendent risk control unit to identify, assess and control our overall
market risk on a consolidated basis. This division is independent from
business units involved in market activities, and reports directly to the

Deputy President of the Bank to make proper and timely business
judgments without influence from business units.

Overseas branches and subsidiaries have also established their own
market risk management sections that are independent from the
business units involved in market activities. Therefore, each office
segregates duties by separating the front office (market activities), the
middle office (risk management) and the back office (operations) and
establishes checks and balances between them effectively.

② Sophisticated and advanced methodologies and 
systems for managing market risk.

Profits and losses in virtually all business units engaging in market
activities are managed on a mark-to-market basis. This approach has
been adopted because we believe that not only realized profits and
losses but also unrealized gains are important to have a clear overall
grasp of profit and loss. 

We use the Value at Risk (VaR) methodology to manage market

risk. For managing and controlling risk that cannot be ascertained by
VaR alone, we also set limits on other risk sensitivities such as BPV
(Basis Point Value), carry out stress tests and back tests, and set stop-
loss limits, according to market risk activities in each business unit.
For further information, refer to the following sections regarding
market risk profiles.

The Risk Assessment Division is continuously striving to absorb
risk management innovation, to develop advanced financial theories
and methodologies, and to improve information systems for risk
management.

③ Basic risk management policy determined by the Board.
We have formulated our own risk management policy in order to clar-
ify our standards on setting risk-taking limits, organizational structures,
lines of authority, procedures, and techniques to evaluate and control
risks.  The risk management policy is reviewed every six months and
approved by the President and CEO.  This is consistent with the risk
management principles issued by Japanese banking regulators and the
Bank for International Settlements.

④ Risk limits determined by the Board.
We believe that the potential loss from our aggregate risks such as mar-
ket, credit and operational risk and other risks should be kept within lev-
els that can be covered by our own capital. Therefore, we set aggregate
VaR limits by allocating some portion of our capital to market risk based
on our business strategy for market activities. Each division’s VaR limit is
set by allocating the Bank’s aggregate VaR according to such criteria as
the market outlook and business strategy. Risk-taking limits at the aggre-
gate and business unit levels are decided every six months by the
President and CEO.

⑤ Regular reporting to the Board and senior management.
[Daily] E-mail
A daily report that summarizes our aggregate VaR, and trading
activities, profits and losses, and market risk-taking of each division is
sent to the Chairman, the President and CEO and other members of
the Board and senior management through E-mail. 

[Monthly] Market Risk Management Committee
The Market Risk Management Committee is convened every month
by the presiding Deputy President. The Committee reviews trading
activities, profits and losses, market risk-taking of each division, as
well as liquidity risk, and makes decisions on ALM hedging policies.

The above procedures provide senior management with an accu-
rate and timely grasp of our market risk exposure, creating an orga-
nizational structure that enhances appropriate and rapid management
decision-making.

Overall, this management system has been functioning very well.
For example, since the Asian market crisis in 1997, branches in the
region have been managing their positions carefully according to the
information provided by the risk management divisions in Singapore
and Hong Kong, which have been monitoring the situation care-
fully.  Not only has this helped forestall a number of problems, but
the Market Risk Management Committee has enabled senior man-
agement to make quick decisions on proposals to reduce risk-taking
limits according to changes in the market environment.  

The following measures have also been adopted to deal with ALM
activities:

• The Treasury Division has been set up to carry out ALM hedg-
ing operations.

• Each month, the Market Risk Management Committee sets its
ALM hedging policies.  The Treasury Division follows these
policies in its actual ALM hedging operations, and submits its
report to the Committee the following month.  

In this way, we have established a solid structure for managing mar-
ket risks including ALM activities.

2. Aggregate Market Risk Activities
(1) Level of Market Risk
Market risk amount (Value at Risk) in fiscal 1997 is shown in Graph
3 below. Market risk amount (Value at Risk) covers almost all finan-
cial instruments in our consolidated books including most of our
subsidiaries (excluding equity investment securities held for long-
term appreciation).

Value at Risk
Value at Risk (VaR) is defined as the potential loss for a certain period
from an adverse market movement which could occur in a certain
probability. Actual VaR may vary with degree of probability, length
of holding period, or the nature of models used to identify the risks.

The following standards apply for the purpose of calculating VaR as
shown in the graph above.

• Confidence interval one-tailed 97.5%  (two-tailed 95%)
• Holding period one day
• Historical observation period 6 months
• Discretion to recognize empirical correlations across broad risk cat-

egories 

We have been calculating VaR with our internal models to monitor
and control our market risk effectively. We have continuously con-
firmed that potential loss calculated using VaR methodology is far
below our own capital. 

[Graph 3] Aggregate Market Risk
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II . Market Risk Management
1. Market Risk Management Structure
We have established a solid structure for managing market risks
including ALM (Asset Liability Management of interest rate risk on
yen deposits and loans). We can adequately manage market 

risks through a centralized risk measurement system, and at the same
time, we generate earnings through market trading. The following
chart outlines our market risk management structure.
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(2) Structure of Market Risk  
Graph 4 shows the breakdown of our market risk amount by each risk
category as of March 31, 1998 (excluding equity investment securities
held for long-term appreciation). This graph shows the sensitivity of
our market risk profile by each risk category.  (This graph covers the
same instruments as in Graph 3.)

As shown in Graph 4 above, the majority of our market risk comes
from Japanese yen interest rate instruments. This fact implies that we
command good control of market risk since we have considerable access
to the yen market. Also, this graph shows that market risks other than
Japanese yen interest rate risk are well-diversified among various cate-
gories of market risks. Option-related risk which has non-linear price
characteristics is only 1% of our overall market risk.

Since interest rate and foreign exchange risk of Asian currencies
totaled approximately 2% overall, the Asian market crisis in 1997 had
relatively little effect on our earnings.

(3) Yen Interest Rate Risk
Table 2 takes a more detailed look at yen interest rate risk, which is
the majority of our aggregate market risk. It shows yen interest rate
risk in terms of interest rate sensitivity by period (grid sensitivity).

[Table 2] Yen Interest Rate Sensitivity Table by Period 
(grid sensitivity)

Billions of yen
1 year 1-5 5 years 

March 31, 1998 or less years or more

Interest rate sensitivity ......................... ¥0.1 ¥(1.3) ¥(1.7)
Note: This table covers the same instruments as in Graph 3.

The interest rate sensitivity above shows how much net present value
increases when interest rates go up by 1 basis point (0.01%). The nega-
tive numbers in the above table thus show that net present value
declines when interest rates increase during the periods in question.
We can obtain a more accurate analysis of the influence of the shift of
interest rates on net present value, even if short-term and long-term
interest rates move differently.

(4) Simulations of Earnings at Risk
Periodically, we conduct simulations of earnings at risk regarding
interest rate portfolios on the banking account of major currencies,
other than securities investments. This enables us to obtain a more
accurate analysis of the influence of changes in interest rate levels on
our earnings. Table 3 below shows earnings at risk in the case where
interest rates rise by 0.5%.

[Table 3] Earnings at Risk 

Billions of yen

Yen U.S. dollar German mark

April 1998 – September 1998 .......... ¥(5.3) ¥(2.7) ¥(0.5)
October 1998 – March 1999 ............ ¥(8.0) ¥(6.0) ¥(2.1)

(Difference between estimated profits in the current situation and estimated profits
in the 0.5% rise in interest rates)

Taking into account that net present value of interest rate portfolios
at the end of March 1998 exceeded 200 billion yen by a large margin,
we believe a potential negative impact on earnings shown on the
above table is negligible in terms of the amount of our overall earnings
and capital.

We manage market risk not only by VaR methodology, 
but also by using other risk sensitivities such as BPV (Basis Point Value)
and earnings simulations to evaluate and manage risk even more 
sensitively.

(5) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk of being unable to offset or hedge
positions in a timely manner at a reasonable cost. This risk states that
the loss might exceed normal VaR. We confirm our ability to offset
or hedge positions in a short time at a reasonable cost by monitoring
and reviewing the liquidity and turnover of certain asset inventories
on a periodic basis.

Specifically, first, we estimate the one-day volume that we can
trade at a reasonable cost for each financial instrument. Second, we
calculate time to offset or hedge our positions based on estimated
one-day volume. Then we compute market liquidity risk amount
(VaR) by setting our holding period equal to time to offset or hedge
positions calculated above.

Market liquidity risk amount as of March 31, 1998 is ¥ 74.6 billion.
Therefore, even by taking the market liquidity and time to offset or
hedge positions into consideration in computing VaR, we have
enough capital and profitability to absorb market liquidity risk (No
correlation among instruments is taken into consideration. Market liq-
uidity risk amount includes the same instruments as in Graph 3 on
page 45).

The President and CEO sets the limit on market liquidity risk
amount every six months, and the Risk Assessment Division reviews
and reports market liquidity risk amount to the Market Risk
Management Committee every month.

The other type of liquidity risk is the risk of the potential inability
to meet funding requirements of transactions. We develop and
enhance the procedure to identify, measure, and monitor our liquid-
ity sources and use it in order to strictly control this type of liquidity
risk. The President and CEO sets the limit every six months and the
liquidity profile is reported monthly to the Market Risk
Management Committee.

(by risk category)
excluding equity investment securities held for long-term appreciation

(as of March 31, 1998)  

[Graph 4] Market Risk
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3. Profile of Risk-taking of Trading Transactions
Since fiscal 1997, mark-to-market accounting has been introduced in
the trading books of Japanese financial institutions. The following sec-
tions describe trading transactions, which include transactions for trad-
ing purpose accounted for in the trading books and foreign exchange
transactions (non-consolidated).

We value financial instruments by using quoted market prices (fair
value) if they are available. If quoted market prices are not available, fair
values are estimates derived from using discounted cash flows or other
valuation techniques. Valuation includes the significant assumptions
which we regard as adequate, and if different assumptions were used, the
valuation may differ from our estimates.

(1) VaR

(2) Back Testing
We routinely compare daily profits and losses with model-generated
risk measures to gauge the quality and accuracy of our risk measure-
ment model. This process is known as “back testing.”

The graph above shows the absolute value of the daily profit and
loss flows to VaR. Dots that lie above the diagonal line indicate the
days when the absolute value of the profits and losses exceeded VaR.
According to the statistical specification underlying our VaR
methodology, only approximately 5% ( 2.5% × 2 as this considers
both profit & loss ) of the observations should lie above the diagonal
line. As shown in Graph 6, ten dots lie above the diagonal line,
which is about 4% of all data. Accordingly, the comparison of actual
trading results with model-generated risk measures is close enough,
and the back test raises no issues regarding the quality of our risk
measurement model.

(3) Stress Testing
In times of stress, market conditions change dramatically. Sharp and
volatile price movement destroys liquidity and correlation between
instruments. As VaR is a figure to determine potential losses in trading
activities when the market is in normal conditions and liquid, it fails to
evaluate the loss in stress condition. Stress testing is an alternative 
technique for evaluating the exposure under worst-case scenarios which
plays an important role together with VaR in market risk management
because it enables senior management to explore potential risks. 

Stress testing can take several forms. We prepare several kinds of
stress tests according to management needs. Some of the results of the
stress testing is presented in the table below. Results are reviewed reg-
ularly by senior management and are reflected in the policies and limits
which are approved by the President and CEO.

The table shows two stress scenarios and one worst-case scenario.
With respect to the two stress scenarios, the results of the severe confi-
dence interval scenarios tell the potential loss under abnormal condi-
tions while still maintaining liquidity and correlation among
instruments. The worst-case scenario is based on the market’s most
extreme movement according to historical data over ten years. It shows
the potential loss when the market moves sharp and volatile in the case
when the correlation among instruments are destroyed.

[Table 4] Stress Testing

Billions of yen

Potential loss

VaR (confidence interval 97.5%) ......................... ¥03.0
Stress Scenario (confidence interval 99.0%) ........ 3.5
Stress Scenario (confidence interval 99.9%)......... 4.7
Stress Scenario (worst case) ................................. 19.0

(4) Revenue to VaR Ratio
It is our basic policy to optimize risk-adjusted return by monitoring
and managing risks we take. Therefore, it is extremely important to
monitor if risk-adjusted return is sufficient, and if we have enough
profitability to absorb any potential losses.

The frequency distribution of our daily combined trading-related
revenue to VaR ratio during the twelve-month period ended March
31, 1998 is presented below. Line A shows the theoretical profit-and-
loss distribution (normal distribution : mean = 0). Line B is the distrib-
ution curve based on our actual profits (mean > 0).

• Line B has a skewed shape toward the positive side. This clearly
shows our good performance with respect to daily revenue.

• The deviation of Line B is smaller than that of the theoretical profit-
and-loss distribution curve (Line A). This shows the fluctuation of
daily revenue is very small. 

[Graph 7]  Frequency Distribution of Combined Trading-related Revenue to VaR
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Due to our well-diversified trading portfolio and client-oriented nature
of our trading activities, we achieved the good performance and stabil-
ity of daily revenue such as indicated in the graph above.  

We use not only the Value at Risk (VaR) methodology, but also
other risk management methods such as stress tests and back tests to
manage market risks more effectively, and we have continuously con-
firmed that potential loss from market risk is far below our own capital,
profitability and other resources. 

4. Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments
(1) Purpose of Off-Balance Sheet Transactions
Off-balance sheet transactions are those which are not recorded on
the balance sheet because fund transfer does not occur for the princi-
pal of those transactions. We deal with off-balance sheet transactions,
especially derivative products, for the risk hedging needs of cus-
tomers, for hedging in asset liability management, and for earning
profits from trading.

(2) Market Risk of Off-Balance Sheet Transactions
As previously explained, off-balance sheet transactions are also
exposed to market risk. (Refer to the previous sections regarding
market risk profile.)

(3) Credit Risk of Off-Balance Sheet Transactions
When calculating BIS-based capital, credit risk of off-balance sheet
transactions is calculated as follows.

[Table 5] BIS Base Credit Risk of Off-Balance Sheet Transactions

Billions of yen
Credit risk equivalent 

Notional amount (BIS base)
March 31, 1998 1997 1998 1997

Interest Rate Swaps.. ¥265,698.7 ¥176,325.6 ¥3,098.7 ¥2,183.4
Currency Swaps ....... 4,919.8 4,030.2 506.3 457.2
FX Forward ............ 34,008.5 31,726.9 1,518.3 1,304.1
Interest Rate Options
(buying) ................ 2,837.9 2,019.4 34.4 17.2

Currency Options
(buying) ................ 2,415.6 1,541.5 73.8 49.3

Other Derivatives .... 27,908.1 17,230.5 35.6 45.7
Effect of Netting 
Arrangement ...... (3,040.4) (833.6)

Total ................. ¥337,788.8 ¥232,874.5 ¥2,227.0 ¥3,223.5
Note: Consolidated basis.

Credit Risk Equivalent (which is basically calculated using the
current exposure method) of off-balance sheet transactions shown in
the above table is different from potential default loss. Potential
default losses arise from the possibility that counterparties may
default on their obligations to the Bank. 

We establish credit limits to manage credit risk for individual cus-
tomers, and review these limits regularly. Limits are set on each type
of transaction and these limits are strictly observed.

Other quantitative data regarding credit risk of off-balance sheet
transactions as of March 31, 1998 (non-consolidated) are presented in
the following tables. These tables include virtually all off-balance sheet
transactions (excluding our transactions with Fuji Capital Markets
Group, our swap house subsidiary). 

[Table 6] Breakdown by Creditworthiness

Billions of yen
Credit Credit Credit risk

exposure cost amount

Customers whose creditworthiness is 
generally equivalent to AAA/Aaa - 
BBB/Baa rating from rating agencies .... ¥2,471.2 ¥0.6 ¥7.1

Customers whose creditworthiness is 
generally equivalent to BB/Ba rating 
from rating agencies .............................. 79.8 0.2 0.3

Others ........................................................... 47.6 6.4 0.9
Total ....................................................... ¥2,598.6 ¥7.2 ¥8.3

Notes: 1. Credit exposure in the table is similar to Credit Risk Equivalent, both
of which are basically calculated using current exposure method and
are different from potential default loss. However, details of calcula-
tion methods are different.  

Notes: 2. Credit cost is expected losses computed using statistical models.
Notes: 3. Credit risk amount is potential default loss (volatility of expected

losses) computed using statistical models.

[Table 7] Breakdown by Region

Billions of yen
Credit Credit Credit risk

exposure cost amount

Japan ....................................................... ¥1,410.3 ¥6.4 ¥4.6
Asia ........................................................ 45.5 0.4 0.3
USA ....................................................... 550.1 0.1 1.6
Europe ........................................................... 493.9 0.2 1.6
Note: Based on countries in which head offices are located.

[Table 8] Breakdown by Industry

Billions of yen
Credit Credit Credit risk

exposure cost amount

Banking, Securities, Insurance ................. ¥2,023.0 ¥0.6 ¥6.3
Manufacturing ........................................ 99.1 0.3 0.2
Wholesale ............................................... 51.8 0.5 0.1
Transportation and Communications ...... 31.8 0.1 0.1
Services ................................................... 18.7 1.3 0.1
Nonbank ................................................ 107.3 1.9 0.2
Others .................................................... ,267.1 2.6 1.3

The tables above show that over 95% of the credit exposure of off-bal-
ance sheet (derivative) transactions arises from transactions with cus-
tomers whose creditworthiness is generally equivalent to the
investment-grade ratings from rating agencies. Moreover, by type of
customers, most of the credit exposure of off-balance sheet (derivative)
transactions is with commercial bank and other financial institution
counterparties, most of whom are dealers in these products. We deal in
virtually no transactions of off-balance sheet (derivative) transactions
which are considered to be highly leveraged.

III. Other Risks
We are making strenuous efforts to put in place an organizational
structure that, with the full participation of top management, is able to
obtain a clear grasp of the nature and size of risk other than credit and
market risk. We have established divisional lines of authority for deal-
ing with operational risk, system risk and other important risk factors.
We also prepared comprehensive disaster recovery plans to deal with
various emergency scenarios such as major disasters affecting a wide
area.

(1) Operational Risk
Operational risk refers to the danger that losses may result from acci-
dents arising as a result of inappropriate procedures performed by per-
sonnel. 

The Systems & Operations Administration Division is primarily
responsible for establishing systems to deal with operational risk.  First,
it establishes procedures to be followed in all operational processes. In
addition, it designates a responsible person in each division whose job
is to check periodically that the prescribed procedures are being prop-
erly observed.

The separation of front, middle and back offices in market divisions
and other measures are designed to provide a system of mutual checks
and balances within the organization.  As part of our efforts to build 
an efficient operational processing system that reduces human error to 
a minimum, we are pushing ahead with computerization and the cen-
tralization of data processing functions at our computer center.

The Inspection Division performs various operational inspections
annually to check the status of office management activities at each
branch, and submits reports on its findings directly to top management.
The Inspection Division is thus in a position to prevent problematic
incidents, as well as evaluate the efficiency of the operational risk man-
agement system and, where necessary, to put forward proposals for
improvement to top management.

(2) Computer-related Risk
We are working very hard on measures to deal with systems risk by setting
up procedures for responding to various disasters and systems troubles.
These focus on two aspects: measures to forestall systems troubles resulting
from facilities and technical problems; and operational procedures in the
event of system malfunctions.

With regard to measures to prevent systems troubles from occurring,
we have worked for many years on building an extremely reliable sys-
tem. Among other things, hardware is housed in a building specifically
built for that purpose with its own electric generating facilities, and
developed hardware and software systems with a full-scale backup func-
tion. Furthermore, we have established a department which is indepen-
dent of systems development divisions to check the nature and security
of new systems at the design stage, as well as the procedures involved in
the use of the systems.

We have also greatly enhanced the safety of our network systems, intro-
ducing advanced networking technology which makes it possible to trans-
mit data between branches.  Hence, in the event of systems trouble
between the computer center and a branch, data are automatically diverted
through other branches eliminating the disruption of the flow of data.

We also have a full range of contingency plans which lay down pro-
cedures to be followed and emergency measures to be adopted in the
case of systems malfunctions.

In addition, we have taken necessary steps to cope with the Year
2000 issue.  (Refer to following page.)

(3) Legal Risk
We established the Legal Division to specialize in the management
of legal risk, and appointed compliance officers at all marketing
branches and head office divisions to ensure that all legal require-
ments are fully met.  The Legal Division is directly in charge of ana-
lyzing the legal risk to which the Bank is exposed in its business, and
of devising measures to deal with it.  It also supervises the activities
of the compliance officers.  To ensure that legal requirements are
observed, a compliance manual has been prepared and distributed to
all employees.  (Refer to following page.)

(4) Settlement Risk
Although the risk arising from timing differences in payments and
receipts, such as those in settling foreign exchange transactions, is a sort
of credit risk, it is necessary to adopt a different approach.  We have
instituted standard measures for managing limits on receivables.  We
are also successfully improving our track record in reducing risk by
altering the rules for fund settlements with correspondent banks in
order to shorten the settlement timing difference and by using netting
to reduce the amounts involved in settlements.

(5) Other Risk
The growing sophistication and complexity of financial technology
have led to the emergence of various new types of risk.  For exam-
ple, in the case where the risk involved in a particular type of prod-
uct is not fully explained to customers when the contract is
concluded, there is a danger that complications (including legal)
involving customers will arise later.  This is particularly true of com-
plex new products such as derivatives. 

For some considerable time now, we have been working to
ensure that staff who deal with customers are well trained in proper
sales procedures through our education and training programs.
Derivatives and related products in particular are given ratings
according to the nature of each product, and sales procedure rules
are formulated for each rating.  Where necessary, risk management
information is disseminated to customers.

We will continue to deal appropriately with new types of risks
which accompany the ever-changing financial business environment.
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Year 2000 Compliance Program
Realizing that the Year 2000 problem is an important manage-
ment issue, the Bank commenced a Year 2000 Compliance
Program (Y2K Program) in fiscal 1996 coordinated by our Systems
Planning Division.

Year 2000 Strategy
The scope of our Y2K program is to ensure that all domestic and
international systems (including those in our branches, representa-
tive offices and subsidiaries) are Y2K compliant.  Of particular
importance are the accounting systems and related applications
which comprise the majority of our systems resources.
Domestically, these systems were upgraded in 1988, at which time
we conducted and completed Y2K compliance testing.  The
remaining systems, therefore, are the current focus of the Y2K
program.

Year 2000 Compliance Definition
Our Y2K program is being implemented in accordance with stan-
dards issued by local regulatory institutions such as the Japanese
Ministry of Finance and the Bank of Japan, as well as with interna-
tional benchmark standards set down in the U.S. Federal Financial
Institutions Examination Council (FFIEC) Y2K Project
Management Awareness Statement, and the British Standards
Institution Y2K Compliance Statement.

Timing 
In March 1998, we completed a comprehensive analysis of all
mainframe internal systems, externally linked systems and micro-
computer systems.  At that time, specific plans and schedules were
created for the development and implementation of any changes
necessary for compliance, and this system development and testing
is proceeding on schedule. Our Y2K program for major systems is
expected to be completed by December 31, 1998.

Organization
Specific action plans for each system are made by the division (or
branch) in charge, and are reported to the System Strategy
Committee (headed by the Deputy President), which discusses and
monitors the progress of the whole Y2K program and each specific
action plan.  For some overseas branches and subsidiaries, in-house
Y2K project teams control the Y2K program and monitor the sta-
tus of each system.

Testing
The testing of all technology components is proceeding according
to the program.  The testing process includes testing of modifica-
tions made to hardware and software components as well as inter-
faces with our customers, vendors and other systems.  Internal
testing is expected to be completed by December 31, 1998.
Accordingly, we will undertake external testing to ensure the
integrity of the system applications with third party data providers
and the environment. 

Business Contingency Plan
Our current Disaster Recovery Plan is being reviewed and will be
modified where necessary by contingency plans specially designed
to deal with the Y2K problem.  The modification is expected to
be completed by December 31, 1998.

Budgeting
The total cost required to implement the Y2K program is cur-
rently estimated to be approximately ¥5 billion (US$37 million)
and has already been approved and budgeted in our medium-term
Management Resource Plan.  Furthermore, all necessary personnel
resources related to the project has been approved as well.

Our management fully recognizes the importance and serious-
ness of system compliance for the Y2K problem.  The compliance
program is being implemented with the highest priority to ensure
an event-free transition to the year 2000, and to prevent any
inconvenience to our customers. 

Millions of yen

Years ended March 31, 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994

Balance Sheet
Assets
Cash and Due from Banks ................................................................ ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000
Call Loans and Bills Purchased ..........................................................
Commercial Paper and Other Debt Purchased ..................................
Trading Assets...................................................................................
Trading Account Securities ...............................................................
Money Held in Trust........................................................................
Securities ..........................................................................................
Loans and Bills Discounted ...............................................................
Foreign Exchange .............................................................................
Other Assets......................................................................................
Premises and Equipment ...................................................................
Deferred Taxes .................................................................................
Consolidation Difference ..................................................................
Customers’ Liabilities for Acceptances and Guarantees ......................

Total Assets ........................................................................ ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities
Deposits............................................................................................ ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000
Call Money and Bills Sold.................................................................
Trading Liabilities .............................................................................
Borrowed Money .............................................................................
Foreign Exchange .............................................................................
Bonds and Notes...............................................................................
Convertible Bonds............................................................................
Other Liabilities ................................................................................
Reserve for Possible Loan Losses.......................................................
Reserve for Retirement Allowances..................................................
Other Reserves.................................................................................
Minority Interest in Consolidated Subsidiaries ..................................
Acceptances and Guarantees..............................................................
Land Revaluation Account ...............................................................

Total Liabilities ..................................................................
Stockholders’ Equity
Common Stock ................................................................................
Preferred Stock .................................................................................
Capital Surplus..................................................................................
Legal Reserve ...................................................................................
Earned Surplus..................................................................................
Treasury Common Stock, at cost ...................................................... ) ) ) ) )

Total Stockholders’ Equity...............................................
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity ..................... ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000

Profit and Loss Account
Income
Interest Income:

Interest on Loans and Discounts .................................................... ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000
Interest and Dividends on Securities ..............................................
Other Interest Income ..................................................................

Fees and Commissions ......................................................................
Trading Revenue..............................................................................
Other Operating Income ..................................................................
Other Income...................................................................................

Total Income......................................................................
Expenses
Interest Expenses:

Interest on Deposits ......................................................................
Interest on Borrowings, Bonds and Notes .....................................
Other Interest Expenses ................................................................

Fees and Commissions ......................................................................
Other Operating Expenses ................................................................
General and Administrative Expenses ................................................
Other Expenses.................................................................................

Total Expenses ...................................................................
Income (Loss) before Income Taxes and Others ...................... ) )
Income Taxes:

Current.........................................................................................
Deferred ....................................................................................... ) ) ) )

Minority Interest in Net Income.......................................................
Amortization of Consolidation Difference ........................................
Equity in Earnings of Affiliates and Unconsolidated Subsidiaries .......
Net Income (Loss)......................................................................... ¥00,000,000) ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000)) ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000

Note: Amounts less than one million yen have been omitted. As a result, the totals shown in the financial statements for the years ended do not 
necessarily agree with the sum of the individual amounts respectively.

8,735,186
1,049,362

173,886
—

1,023,600
181,271

5,660,362
33,006,897

408,287
1,587,556

318,923
174,251

—
2,796,516

55,116,101

39,081,545
5,121,449

—
2,825,781

76,739
649,484
31,720

1,898,074
541,654
48,276
18,925
24,469

2,796,516
—

53,114,638

423,316
—

314,184
72,807

1,191,166
(11

2,001,463
55,116,101

1,550,400
210,304
676,864
111,728

—
143,169
27,021

2,719,489

1,066,511
340,667
400,451
46,517
41,754

404,232
355,280

2,655,414
64,074

29,757
(674

3,468
1,131
2,548

32,939

7,201,305
1,267,896

264,440
—

1,049,045
170,959

5,970,789
32,277,715

373,913
1,988,362

326,753
135,113

—
2,402,900

53,429,197

37,212,285
5,186,289

—
2,817,529

52,956
609,883
13,231

2,323,258
732,756
48,525
20,602
24,078

2,402,900
—

51,444,297

423,762
—

314,629
77,869

1,168,640
(1

1,984,900
53,429,197

1,409,873
188,551
719,784
114,639

—
105,249
455,681

2,993,779

986,240
330,462
392,547
44,845
55,915

416,583
727,417

2,954,013
39,766

5,026
28,850
3,377

—
2,137
4,649

5,626,067
1,617,672

126,295
—

1,104,386
148,150

5,646,405
33,793,990

460,804
2,703,193

344,468
223,163

—
2,606,804

54,401,403

37,280,377
4,812,472

—
2,892,475

77,051
904,255
13,009

3,100,789
980,737
48,877
21,262
26,683

2,606,804
—

52,764,796

423,873
—

314,740
82,253

815,747
(7

1,636,606
54,401,403

1,344,629
165,474
980,419
128,083

—
200,100
305,417

3,124,125

884,722
303,880
583,498
44,528
84,552

418,786
1,189,423
3,509,393
(385,267

8,180
(68,454

3,863
139

3,575
(325,420

4,341,701
2,230,223

188,430
—

845,037
117,271

5,607,096
35,714,787

541,793
3,480,573

357,330
256,925

—
2,529,984

56,211,154

38,649,481
4,310,517

—
2,252,185

82,000
1,322,494

12,582
3,943,584
1,022,030

48,816
60,243
42,885

2,529,984
—

54,276,804

424,087
105,000
419,954
86,616

898,696
(4

1,934,349
56,211,154

1,283,411
138,348
751,895
128,630

—
96,938

345,469
2,744,693

697,473
313,706
485,111
47,265
55,291

443,807
602,934

2,645,590
99,103

7,549
(18,390

4,891
1,171
5,163

109,044

2,821,634
1,453,230

43,216
3,265,412

—
84,989

6,044,830
34,028,201

580,018
3,326,086

693,955
441,043

8,153
2,322,736

55,113,509

34,552,361
3,755,273
2,057,167
2,947,169

113,221
1,657,224

12,582
4,381,799

904,217
48,312

176,066
282,392

2,322,736
326,529

53,537,054

424,087
105,000
419,954
89,216

538,210
(11

1,576,455
55,113,509

1,399,707
121,337
661,991
137,765
56,913

151,504
350,069

2,879,290

703,442
418,061
519,472
49,247
46,816

470,091
1,128,236
3,335,366
(456,076

17,528
(133,182

7,584
2,038
4,735

(345,309

CONSOLIDATED FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY
Fuji Bank Group
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Legal Compliance
Banking is a business based on mutual trust between a financial
institution and its customers.  And with the globalization of bank-
ing proceeding at an accelerated pace, banks are expected not only
to be responsible corporate citizens that conduct business honestly,
with integrity and according to solid business ethics, but also to
conduct their worldwide operations in compliance with an
increasingly complex web of local laws and regulations in the
countries they operate.  In this environment, the Bank focuses
increasingly on the importance of compliance and hence has estab-
lished a global compliance system.

Our Legal Division at Head Office is responsible for the Bank’s
legal affairs and has compliance officers in the Division.  The
Division has directed all head office divisions/departments and
branches in Japan to designate an employee as a compliance officer
as well.  Overseas, we have a compliance officer in each country
where our branches are located and in addition to this, we have
also retained the services of local law and accounting firms in order

to implement a support system for the execution of contracts and
to set up a program to ensure conformity to legal and compliance
issues. The general manager of the Legal Division, who is also the
Bank’s chief compliance officer, instructs compliance officers
directly to investigate and take the necessary measures for legal
matters.  Our compliance objectives are to ensure that all banking
business is conducted in compliance with laws, regulations and
supervisory requirements in each country where our branches are
located.  Therefore, our global compliance program is being
implemented in line with standards and guidelines issued by local
regulatory authorities and we have modified internal bank policies,
and compliance manuals, including our code of conduct and pro-
cedures, accordingly.   These objectives must be met in order to
protect the Bank’s franchise and reputation.  We continually mon-
itor and evaluate our compliance system in accordance with
changing internal and external conditions, and will enhance the
system as necessary to maintain its effectiveness.
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Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

March 31, 1998 1997 1998

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities
Deposits (Note 8) .............................................................................. ¥ 00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 $000,000,000
Call Money and Bills Sold .................................................................
Trading Liabilities ..............................................................................
Borrowed Money (Note 9)................................................................
Foreign Exchange..............................................................................
Bonds and Notes (Note 10) ...............................................................
Convertible Bonds (Note 11) ............................................................
Other Liabilities (Note 12).................................................................
Reserve for Possible Loan Losses........................................................
Reserve for Retirement Allowances ...................................................
Other Reserves (Note 13)..................................................................
Minority Interest in Consolidated Subsidiaries ...................................
Acceptances and Guarantees (Note 14)..............................................
Land Revaluation Account ................................................................

Total Liabilities ....................................................................

Stockholders’ Equity
Common Stock (Note 15) .................................................................
Preferred Stock (Note 15)..................................................................
Capital Surplus (Note 15)..................................................................
Legal Reserve (Note 16)....................................................................
Earned Surplus ..................................................................................
Treasury Common Stock, at cost ....................................................... ) ) )

Total Stockholders’ Equity ....................................................
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity...................... ¥ 00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 $000,000,000

261,562,164
28,427,509
15,572,803
22,310,138

857,087
12,545,228

95,248
33,170,318
6,844,945

365,727
1,332,829
2,137,717

17,583,168
2,471,834

405,276,715

3,210,348
794,852

3,179,064
675,369

4,074,262
(89

11,933,806
417,210,521

38,649,481
4,310,517

—
2,252,185

82,000
1,322,494

12,582
3,943,584
1,022,030

48,816
60,243
42,885

2,529,984
—

54,276,804

424,087
105,000
419,954
86,616

898,696
(4

1,934,349
56,211,154

34,552,361
3,755,273
2,057,167
2,947,169

113,221
1,657,224

12,582
4,381,799

904,217
48,312

176,066
282,392

2,322,736
326,529

53,537,054

424,087
105,000
419,954
89,216

538,210
(11

1,576,455
55,113,509

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

March 31, 1998 1997 1998

ASSETS

Cash and Due from Banks ................................................................. ¥ 00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 $000,000,000

Call Loans and Bills Purchased ..........................................................

Commercial Paper and Other Debt Purchased...................................

Trading Assets (Note 3) .....................................................................

Trading Account Securities................................................................

Money Held in Trust.........................................................................

Securities (Note 4).............................................................................

Loans and Bills Discounted (Note 5)..................................................

Foreign Exchange .............................................................................

Other Assets (Note 6) ........................................................................

Premises and Equipment (Note 7) .....................................................

Deferred Taxes ..................................................................................

Consolidation Difference ..................................................................

Customers’ Liabilities for Acceptances and Guarantees (Note 14) ......
Total Assets......................................................................... ¥ 00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 $000,000,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

21,359,834

11,000,989

327,152

24,719,248

—

643,369

45,759,507

257,594,257

4,390,753

25,178,551

5,253,257

3,338,712

61,724

17,583,168

417,210,521

4,341,701

2,230,223

188,430

—

845,037

117,271

5,607,096

35,714,787

541,793

3,480,573

357,330

256,925

—

2,529,984
56,211,154

2,821,634

1,453,230

43,216

3,265,412

—

84,989

6,044,830

34,028,201

580,018

3,326,086

693,955

441,043

8,153

2,322,736

55,113,509

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fuji Bank Group

Balance Sheet
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Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Years ended March 31, 1998 1997 1998

Balance at Beginning of Year................................................................... ¥ 000,000 ¥0,000,000 $0,000,000
Deductions:

Transfer to Legal Reserve.................................................................... ) ) )
Dividends............................................................................................ ) ) )

Net Income (Loss) .................................................................................. ) )
Balance at End of Year ............................................................................ ¥ 000,000 ¥0,000,000 $0,000,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

6,803,157

(19,682
(95,211

(2,614,002
4,074,262

815,747

(4,362
(21,731
109,044
898,696

898,696

(2,600
(12,577

(345,309
538,210

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Years ended March 31, 1998 1997 1998

INCOME
Interest Income:

Interest on Loans and Discounts .......................................................... ¥ 0,000,000 ¥0,000,000 $00,000,000
Interest and Dividends on Securities ....................................................
Other Interest Income ........................................................................

Fees and Commissions.............................................................................
Trading Revenue (Note 17) ....................................................................
Other Operating Income (Note 18).........................................................
Other Income (Note 18) .........................................................................

Total Income ..............................................................................

EXPENSES
Interest Expenses:

Interest on Deposits.............................................................................
Interest on Borrowings, Bonds and Notes ...........................................
Other Interest Expenses.......................................................................

Fees and Commissions ............................................................................
Other Operating Expenses (Note 19) ......................................................
General and Administrative Expenses ......................................................
Other Expenses (Note 19) .......................................................................

Total Expenses ............................................................................
Income (Loss) before Income Taxes and Others ....................................... ) )
Income Taxes (Note 20):

Current...............................................................................................
Deferred ............................................................................................. ) ) )

Minority Interest in Net Income .............................................................
Amortization of Consolidation Difference ...............................................
Equity in Earnings of Aff iliates and Unconsolidated Subsidiaries ............
Net Income (Loss) .............................................................................. ¥ 0,000,000) ¥0,000,000 $00,000,000)

Net Income (Loss) per Share (single currency unit).................................. ¥(116.35) ¥00.00 $(0.00)
Net Income per Share (diluted) ...............................................................
Dividend Declared per Share (single currency unit):

Common Stock...................................................................................
Preferred Stock ...................................................................................

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

10,595,818
918,531

5,011,292
16,525,641
1,042,885

430,834
1,146,893
2,650,038

21,796,291

5,325,076
3,164,732
3,932,416

12,422,224
372,802
354,398

3,558,604
8,540,772

25,248,800
(3,452,509

132,694
(1,008,198

57,414
15,432
35,849

(2,614,002

(0.90
—

0.06
0.06

1,283,411
138,348
751,895

2,173,655
128,630

—
96,938

345,469
2,744,693

697,473
313,706
485,111

1,496,291
47,265
55,291

443,807
602,934

2,645,590
99,103

7,549
(18,390

4,891
1,171
5,163

109,044

37.54
37.27

8.50
3.75

1,399,707
121,337
661,991

2,183,037
137,765
56,913

151,504
350,069

2,879,290

703,442
418,061
519,472

1,640,975
49,247
46,816

470,091
1,128,236
3,335,366
(456,076

17,528
(133,182

7,584
2,038
4,735

(345,309

(119.35
—

8.50
7.50

CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fuji Bank Group

CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fuji Bank Group

Statement of Income Statement of Earned Surplus

C
O

N
S
O

LI
D

A
TE

D
C
O

N
S
O

LID
A
TED



5756

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles and
practices generally accepted in Japan and have been compiled from the consolidated financial statements filed with
the Minister of Finance as required by the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan. Certain items presented in the
consolidated financial statements filed with the Minister of Finance have been reclassified for the convenience of
readers outside Japan.

Certain previously reported amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current period presentation. 
Although not required to be filed with the Minister of Finance, consolidated statements of cash flows for the

years ended March 31, 1998 and 1997 have been prepared and included in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements. For the purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and demand
deposits with the Bank of Japan in accordance with the guideline for Statement of Cash Flows issued in June 1991.

As permitted by the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan, amounts of less than one million yen have been
omitted. As a result, the totals in yen shown in the consolidated financial statements do not necessarily agree with
the sum of the individual amounts.

Amounts in U.S. dollars are included solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan. The rate of
¥132.10=U.S.$1, the rate of exchange on March 31, 1998, has been used in translation. The inclusion of such
amounts is not intended to imply that Japanese yen have been or could be readily converted, realized or settled in
U.S. dollars at that rate or any other rate.

Differences between the accounting policies followed by The Fuji Bank, Limited (“the Bank”) and its consolidated
subsidiaries (the “Fuji Bank Group”) and International Accounting Standards (“IAS”) are described in Note 2. (m) below.

(a) Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Bank and 114 of its subsidiaries including Fuji
Securities Co., Ltd. (a Japanese corporation), The Fuji Trust and Banking, Co., Ltd. (a Japanese corporation), Fuji
Bank (Schweiz) AG (a Swiss corporation), The Fuji Bank and Trust Company (a U.S. corporation), and Fuji
America Holdings, Inc. (a U.S. corporation) and its subsidiaries (including the Heller Group), principally Heller
Financial, Inc. and Heller International Group, Inc. 

The unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies of Fuji America Holdings, Inc. are accounted for by
the equity method. Investments in other unconsolidated subsidiaries (majority-owned) and other affiliates (20 to
50 percent owned) are carried at cost as they are not material.

Fuji Business Agency, Ltd. and other domestic subsidiaries have not been consolidated since these subsidiaries
are not significant and their results have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Bank.

All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
The financial statements of the consolidated subsidiaries whose fiscal year-ends are principally December 31 are

included in the consolidated financial statements on the basis of their respective fiscal years after making appropri-
ate adjustments for significant transactions during the periods from their respective year-end dates to the date of
the consolidated financial statements.

The difference, not significant in amount, between the cost and underlying interest in the net assets of consoli-
dated subsidiaries is charged or credited to income in their acquisition year.

(b) Trading Assets and Liabilities
Effective April 1, 1997, the Bank introduced a new method of valuation of trading accounts included in

trading assets and trading liabilities as prescribed under Article 17-2 of the Banking Law of Japan.
The effects of the introduction of the new method for trading transactions resulted in a decrease of loss before

income taxes and others of ¥21,551 million and increases in total assets and liabilities of ¥1,842,739 million and
¥1,814,168 million, respectively.

Trading assets and liabilities are valued using quoted market prices, where available. However, quoted market
prices are not available for a substantial portion of financial instruments. Fair value for such financial instruments
is estimated using discounted cash flow models or other valuation techniques.

(c) Translation of Foreign Currencies
(i) The financial statements of consolidated foreign subsidiaries and affiliates are translated into Japanese yen at the
exchange rates prevailing at the ends of their respective fiscal years for the consolidated financial statements for the
years ended March 31, 1998 and 1997, except for the beginning and ending balances of their earned surpluses
which are translated at historical exchange rates.

1. Basis of Presentation

2. Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Years ended March 31, 1998 1997 1998

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest on Loans and Discounts Received...................................................................................... ¥0,000,0000 ¥0,000,000 $00,000,000(
Interest and Dividends on Securities Received................................................................................
Other Interest Received .................................................................................................................
Fees and Commissions Received ....................................................................................................
Other Operating Revenue .............................................................................................................

Total ......................................................................................................................................
Interest on Deposits Paid ................................................................................................................
Interest on Borrowings, Bonds and Notes ......................................................................................
Other Interest Paid .........................................................................................................................
Fees and Commissions Paid ............................................................................................................
Other Operating Expenditures .......................................................................................................
General and Administrative Expenses Paid ......................................................................................

Total ......................................................................................................................................
Net Decrease in Due from Banks ...................................................................................................
Net Decrease (Increase) in Call Loans and Bills Purchased .............................................................. )
Net Decrease (Increase) in Commercial Paper and Other Debt Purchased ...................................... )
Net Increase in Trading Accounts................................................................................................... ) )
Net Proceeds from Trading Account Securities Transactions ..........................................................
Net Proceeds from (Expenditures of) National Government Bonds and Other Transactions ........... ) )
Net Decrease (Increase) in Loans and Bills Discounted .................................................................. )
Net Increase in Foreign Exchange .................................................................................................. ) ) )
Net Increase in Other Assets........................................................................................................... ) ) )

Total ...................................................................................................................................... )
Net Increase (Decrease) in Deposits and Other ............................................................................... ) )
Net Decrease in Call Money and Borrowed Money ....................................................................... ) ) )
Net Increase in Foreign Exchange ..................................................................................................
Net Increase in Other Liabilities .....................................................................................................

Total ...................................................................................................................................... ) )
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities ............................................................................ ) ) )

CASH FLOWS FROM OTHER ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Sales of Stocks and Other ........................................................................................
Proceeds from Settlements of Money Held in Trust........................................................................
Proceeds from Sales of Premises and Equipment .............................................................................
Other Proceeds .............................................................................................................................

Total ......................................................................................................................................
Purchases of Stocks and Other ........................................................................................................
Investments on Money Held in Trust .............................................................................................
Purchases of Premises and Equipment.............................................................................................
Other Payments..............................................................................................................................

Total ......................................................................................................................................
Net Cash Used in Other Activities ................................................................................... ) ) )

DIVIDENDS AND INCOME TAXES 
Dividends Paid ...............................................................................................................................
Income Taxes Paid .........................................................................................................................

Total ......................................................................................................................................
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issuance of Preferred Stock .............................................................................................................
Issuance of Preferred Securities of Subsidiaries ................................................................................
Issuance of Bonds and Notes ..........................................................................................................

Total ......................................................................................................................................
Principal Payments of Convertible Bonds, Bonds and Notes ...........................................................

Total ......................................................................................................................................
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities ....................................................................

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents ............................................................................... ) ) )
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year.......................................................................
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year ................................................................................. ¥0,000,0000 ¥0,000,000 $00,000,000(

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

8,763,974
935,517

6,957,060
1,015,444

444,570
18,116,565
5,314,679
3,092,919
3,295,516

398,939
113,430

3,162,937
15,378,420
10,045,954
5,881,857
1,099,275

(3,526,593
—

(620,178
8,692,991
(291,600

(7,490,332
13,791,374

(31,015,287
(2,117,087

236,344
11,541,853

(21,354,177
(4,824,658

9,701,390
1,813,712

419,100
52,773

11,986,975
10,147,111
1,583,165

442,334
3,696,493

15,869,103
(3,882,128

95,211
91,387

186,598

—
1,723,555
7,790,259
9,513,814
2,081,419
2,081,419
7,432,395

(1,460,989
9,337,688
7,876,699

1,096,621
142,353
596,948
131,950
59,963

2,027,836
710,000
308,862
32,638
46,900
6,916

403,413
1,508,732

999,013
(612,551
(62,135

—
262,383
186,951

(2,133,099
(81,370

(529,182
(1,969,991
1,369,103
(830,373

4,949
404,482
948,162

(502,724

1,359,380
82,316
38,102
10,348

1,490,148
1,352,885

47,519
60,690
97,406

1,558,502
(68,354

21,731
3,765

25,497

210,000
—

296,629
506,629
190,262
190,262
316,367

(280,208
1,513,717
1,233,508

1,157,721
123,581
919,027
134,140
58,727

2,393,198
702,069
408,574
435,337
52,699
14,984

417,823
2,031,489
1,327,070

776,993
145,214

(465,862
—

(81,925
1,148,344

(38,520
(989,472

1,821,840
(4,097,119

(279,667
31,221

1,524,678
(2,820,886

(637,337

1,281,553
239,591
55,363
6,971

1,583,479
1,340,433

209,136
58,432

488,306
2,096,308
(512,829

12,577
12,072
24,649

—
227,681

1,029,093
1,256,774

274,955
274,955
981,819

(192,996
1,233,508
1,040,512
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(g) Reserve for Retirement Allowances and Pension Plans
The reserve for retirement allowances of the Bank is provided in accordance with the Rules for Bank Accounting,
based on the amount which would have been required to be paid if all employees covered by the retirement plan
had voluntarily terminated their employment at the balance sheet date.

In addition, the Bank has contributory pension plans for eligible employees. The unamortized balance of prior
service cost at March 31, 1997 (based on the most recent available information on the pension plan) was ¥21,785
million. Prior service cost is being amortized over a period of 15 years and nine months.

The consolidated subsidiaries principally have funded pension plans for their employees.

(h) Land Revaluation Account
Land used for the Bank’s business activities has been revalued on the basis prescribed by the law concerning
revaluation of land. The difference between the book value and the revaluation is included in liabilities.

(i) Lease Transactions
Finance leases under which the ownership of the leased property is deemed to have been transferred to the lessee
are capitalized, while other finance leases are accounted for as operating leases.

(j) Income Taxes
Deferred income taxes arising from timing differences between financial and tax reporting are provided for con-
solidated financial statement purposes.

(k) Appropriation of Earned Surplus
Cash dividends, transfers to the legal reserve and bonuses to the directors and the senior overseers are recorded
in the fiscal year in which the proposed appropriations of earned surplus are approved by the Board of Directors
and/or the general meeting of the stockholders.

(l) Net Income (Loss) per Share
Net income (loss) per share is computed based on the average number of shares of common stock outstanding
during the year.

Net income per share (diluted) is computed based on the average number of shares of common stock out-
standing during the year, after giving effect to the dilutive potential of the common stock to be issued upon the
conversion of convertible bonds and preference shares. It was not necessary to disclose net income per share
(diluted) for the year ended March 31, 1998 because a net loss was recorded.

(m) Differences between Japanese Accounting Principles and Practices and International
Accounting Standards (IAS)

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Fuji Bank Group are prepared in conformity with
accounting principles and practices generally accepted in Japan. Such principles and practices differ from
International Accounting Standards in a number of material respects which include accounting for income taxes
(IAS 12), accounting for leases (IAS 17), retirement benefit cost (IAS 19), foreign translation (IAS 21), cash flow
statements (IAS 7), disclosures in the financial statements of banks and similar financial institutions (IAS 30) and
other disclosures.

(ii) a) Foreign  currency accounts held by the Bank are translated into Japanese yen at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the fiscal year, except that certain special accounts, as approved by the Japanese regulatory
authorities, are translated at historical exchange rates.

b) Foreign currency accounts held by the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated into the currency of
the subsidiary at their respective year-end exchange rates.

(iii) Foreign exchange trading positions, including spot, forward, currency futures and currency options contracts,
are valued at fair value and the resulting gains and losses are included in the accompanying consolidated statements
of income.

(d) Securities
Securities are stated at the moving average cost method.

Effective April 1, 1997, the Bank changed its method of valuation of listed securities and listed securities held
in separately managed trusts, including in the securities account from the lower of cost or market to the moving
average cost method. Japanese government bonds have been stated at the moving average cost method prior to
this change. The effect of this change in accounting for securities resulted in a decrease of loss before income
taxes and others of ¥433,195 million.

Securities owned by the consolidated subsidiaries are carried principally at cost or at the lower of cost or 
market value.

(e) Depreciation of Premises and Equipment
Premises and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation of premises and equipment owned by the Bank is computed under the declining-balance
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets and is provided in the full amount permitted under the Rules
for Bank Accounting issued by the Ministry of Finance.

Effective April 1, 1997, the Bank introduced a new method of depreciation of buildings using the declining-
balance method at the standard rate in accordance with amendments to the Uniform Accounting Standards for
Banks.

The effects of the change in accounting for depreciation resulted in a decrease of loss before income taxes
and others of ¥6,940 million.

Depreciation of premises and equipment owned by consolidated subsidiaries is mainly computed by the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Estimated useful lives for premises range between three and 65 years and for equipment between two 
and 20 years.

(f) Reserve for Possible Loan Losses
Effective April 1, 1997, the Bank implemented a new methodology of calculating reserves for possible loan losses.

The reserves for possible loan losses of the Bank are made in accordance with the policies regarding write-
offs and reserve standards in the Uniform Accounting Standards for Banks. Pursuant to the internal rules for self-
assessment of asset quality and the internal rules for providing reserves for possible credit losses, a reserve for
possible loan losses is provided for as described below:

For loans to borrowers which are classified as substantially bankrupt or which are bankrupt in the formal legal
sense a reserve is provided based on the amount remaining after deduction of the amount of collateral consid-
ered to be disposable and amounts recoverable under guarantees.

For loans to borrowers which although not actually bankrupt in the legal sense, have experienced serious
management difficulties and whose failure is imminent. In this case, a reserve is provided based on the amount
remaining after deduction of the amount of collateral considered to be disposable and amounts recoverable
under guarantees and an overall comprehensive analysis of the likelihood of repayment.

For other loans, a reserve is provided based on historical loan loss experience.
The reserve relating to loans to certain lesser developed countries is provided based on the prospective loss

after consideration of the relevant country’s political and economic situation, etc. (including reserves for losses
on overseas investments as prescribed under Article 55-2 of the Exceptions to Tax Laws Act). 

The above procedures for providing  reserves are made on the basis of the quality of all the Bank’s loan
assets, using the Bank’s internally established rules for self-assessment.

Consolidated subsidiaries provide reserves for possible loan losses at the amounts considered reasonable in
accordance with local accounting standards and also based on their management’s assessment of the loan portfolio.
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Premises and equipment at March 31, 1998 and 1997 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen
1998 1997

Land .................................................................................................... ¥ 000,000 ¥000,000
Buildings ...............................................................................................
Equipment ............................................................................................
Other ....................................................................................................

Accumulated depreciation .....................................................................

Net book value ..................................................................................... ¥ 000,000 ¥000,000

Deposits at March 31, 1998 and 1997 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen
1998 1997

Current deposits........................................................................... ¥ 00,000,000 ¥00,000,000
Ordinary deposits ........................................................................
Deposits at notice.........................................................................
Time deposits...............................................................................
Other deposits..............................................................................

Negotiable certif icates of deposit..................................................

¥ 00,000,000 ¥00,000,000

Borrowed money at March 31, 1998 and 1997 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen
1998 1997

Bills rediscounted............................................................................. ¥ 0,000,0000 ¥0,000,000
Borrowings from the Bank of Japan and other f inancial institutions......
Commercial paper ...........................................................................

Subordinated borrowed money amounting to ¥891,300 million at March 31, 1998 and
¥1,021,800 million at March 31, 1997 was included in “Borrowings from the Bank of Japan
and other f inancial institutions”.

Bonds and Notes at March 31, 1998 and 1997 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen
1998 1997

Subordinated bonds and notes ............................................................... ¥ 0,00,000 ¥0,000,000
Other .....................................................................................................

708,938
613,555

¥1,322,494

818,075
839,148

¥ 1,657,224

11,769
1,880,264

360,151

¥2,252,185

8,741
2,636,846

301,580

¥ 2,947,169

1,979,431
4,997,303
1,015,713

23,229,608
3,501,387

34,723,445
3,926,036

38,649,481

1,492,644
5,713,618
1,081,426

19,429,290
3,649,892

31,366,873
3,185,488

34,552,361

84,400
300,977
230,201
79,984

695,563
338,232

357,330

408,168
297,937
234,549
96,249

1,036,905
342,950

693,955

5. Loans and Bills
Discounted

6. Other Assets

7. Premises and
Equipment

8. Deposits

Trading Assets
Trading assets at March 31, 1998 and 1997 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen
1998 *1997

Trading securities ......................................................................... ¥ 0,000,000 ¥0,000,000
Derivatives of trading securities ....................................................
Securities related to trading transactions .......................................
Derivatives of securities related to trading transactions..................
Trading-related f inancial derivatives.............................................
Other trading assets ......................................................................

¥ 0,000,000 ¥0,000,000

Trading Liabilities
Trading liabilities at March 31, 1998 and 1997 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen
1998 *1997

Trading securities sold for short sales ............................................ ¥ 0,000,000 ¥0,000,000
Derivatives of trading securities ....................................................
Securities related to trading transactions sold for short sales ..........
Trading-related f inancial derivatives.............................................

¥ 0,000,000 ¥0,000,000

Securities at March 31, 1998 and 1997 were as follows:
Millions of yen

1998 1997

Japanese national government bonds ............................................ ¥ 0,000,000 ¥0,000,000
Japanese local government bonds .................................................
Japanese corporate bonds and f inancial debentures .......................
Japanese corporate stocks..............................................................
Other securities............................................................................

¥ 0,000,000 ¥0,000,000

Loans and bills discounted at March 31, 1998 and 1997 consisted of the following:
Millions of yen

1998 1997

Bills discounted ............................................................................ ¥ 00,000,000 ¥00,000,000
Loans on notes and deeds .............................................................
Overdrafts....................................................................................
Financing receivables, including factoring, leasing and 
property f inancing .....................................................................

¥ 00,000,000 ¥00,000,000

Other assets at March 31, 1998 and 1997 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen
1998 1997

Accrued income and prepaid expenses ......................................... ¥ 0,000,000 ¥0,000,000
Securities in custody ....................................................................
Other...........................................................................................

¥ 0,000,000 ¥0,000,000

1,673,269
509,426

1,297,877
3,480,573

583,851
1,327,847
1,414,387
3,326,086

823,032
30,831,007
3,943,665

117,082
35,714,787

726,927
27,583,391
5,408,580

309,301
34,028,201

1,052,713
235,094
468,161

3,292,109
559,017

5,607,096

1,090,825
368,933
538,052

3,474,758
572,261

6,044,830

—
—
—
—
—

561,405
294

12,231
1,483,235
2,057,167

—
—
—
—
—
—
—

877,934
409

111,068
0

1,391,380
884,619

3,265,412

4. Securities

3. Trading Assets and 
Trading Liabilities
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All contingent liabilities arising from acceptances and guarantees are included in this account.
As a contra-account, “Customers’ Liabilities for Acceptances and Guarantees” is shown on
the assets side of the balance sheets and represents the Fuji Bank Group’s right of indemnity
from its customers.

Acceptances and guarantees at March 31, 1998 and 1997 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen
1998 1997

Acceptances .................................................................................... ¥ 0,000,000 ¥0,000,000
Letters of credit ...............................................................................
Guarantees ......................................................................................

¥ 0,000,000 ¥0,000,000

The Bank’s authorized number of shares of capital stock (common stock and preferred stock)
as of March 31, 1998 and 1997 was as follows:
(i) 4 billion shares of common stock, voting and ranking equally with any other class of
shares (except for preference shares) with respect to the payment of dividends and distributions
on the liquidation or winding-up of the Bank. The dividend rate and redemption and con-
version rights, if any on such shares, are to be determined by the Board of Directors of the
Bank prior to issuance.
(ii) 100 million preference shares, non-voting and ranking prior to shares of common stock
with respect to the payment of dividends and distributions on the liquidation or winding-up
of the Bank. The dividend rate and redemption and conversion rights, if any on such shares,
are to be determined by the Board of Directors of the Bank prior to issuance.

The information relating to Common Stock, Preferred Stock and Capital Surplus is as
follows:

Millions of yen
1998 1997

Common Stock:
Balance at beginning of year........................................................ ¥ 000,000 ¥000,000
Add:

Conversion of convertible bonds ............................................

Balance at end of year...................................................................... ¥ 000,000 ¥000,000

(Shares issued and outstanding at end of year) ..................................
) )

Preferred Stock:
Balance at beginning of year........................................................ ¥ 000,000 ¥000,000
Add:

Issuance...................................................................................

Balance at end of year...................................................................... ¥ 000,000 ¥000,000

(Shares issued and outstanding at end of year) ..................................
) )

Capital Surplus:
Balance at beginning of year........................................................ ¥ 000,000 ¥000,000
Add:

Issuance of Preferred Stock......................................................
Conversion of convertible bonds ............................................

Balance at end of year...................................................................... ¥ 000,000 ¥000,000

423,873

213

424,087

(2,897,614
thousand shares

—

105,000

105,000

(70,000
thousand shares

314,740

105,000
213

419,954

424,087

—

424,087

(2,897,614
thousand shares

105,000

—

105,000

(70,000
thousand shares

419,954

—
—

419,954

36,370
304,611

2,189,002

2,529,984

41,164
257,351

2,024,220

2,322,736

13. Other Reserves

14. Acceptances and 
Guarantees

15. Common Stock, 
Preferred Stock and 
Capital Surplus

Convertible bonds at March 31, 1998 and 1997 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen
1998 1997

2 3/4 percent U.S. dollar convertible bonds due 2000 ............................... ¥ 00,000 ¥00,000
1 3/4 percent U.S. dollar convertible bonds due 2002 ...............................

These convertible bonds unless previously redeemed are convertible into shares of 
common stock of the Bank. The conversion price of each is subject to adjustment 
in certain cases including stock splits.

The conversion prices per share were as follows:

Conversion price Fixed
per share at exchange

March 31, 1998 rate

2 3/4 percent U.S. dollar convertible bonds due 2000 ................ ¥1,394.00 ¥239.60 = U.S.$1
1 3/4 percent U.S. dollar convertible bonds due 2002 ................ ¥2,928.40 ¥146.45 = U.S.$1

Other liabilities at March 31, 1998 and 1997 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen
1998 1997

Accrued expenses and unearned income.......................................... ¥ 0,000,000 ¥0,000,000
Accrued income taxes......................................................................
Securities borrowed.........................................................................
Securities sold not yet purchased......................................................
Other ..............................................................................................

¥ 0,000,000 ¥0,000,000

Other reserves at March 31, 1998 and 1997 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen
1998 1997

Reserve for possible losses on loans sold off ............................................... ¥ 00,000 ¥00,000
Reserve for specif ic borrowers under support ............................................
Reserve for price f luctuation of Japanese national government bonds........
Reserve for possible losses from trading account securities transactions........
Reserve for f inancial futures transaction liabilities......................................
Reserve for securities transaction liabilities.................................................

The reserve for possible losses on loans sold off has been provided against possible future
losses after consideration of the value of the collateral of the loans sold off to the
Cooperative Credit Purchasing Company.

The reserve for specif ic borrowers under support has been provided for loans to support
the rehabilitation of specif ic borrowers. An estimate has been made of the future amount
likely to be required in supporting such borrowers and the necessary amount is accounted
for under the above reserve. This reserve is stipulated under Article 287-2 of the
Commercial Code of Japan.

38,834
—

7,513
13,855

31
9

¥60,243

52,717
122,300

—
995
47
5

¥ 176,066

1,754,730
12,853

482,978
689,917

1,003,104

3,943,584

650,369
18,391

1,312,619
—

2,400,418

4,381,799

2,854
9,727

¥12,582

2,854
9,727

¥ 12,582

12. Other Liabilities
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On December 28, 1996, the Bank issued 70 million preference shares at a price of ¥3,000 per share for gross
proceeds of ¥210,000 million, of which ¥105,000 million was credited to the capital surplus account. The
issuance costs were expensed when paid. The preference shareholders are entitled, with priority over any payment
of dividends and distributions on the liquidation of the Bank to any other class of shares of the Bank, to annual
noncumulative dividends of  ¥7.5 per preference share and a distribution of ¥3,000 per preference share.

The preference shares are convertible on or after July 1, 1997 and up to and including January 31, 2002, at
the option of the holders, into fully-paid shares of common stock of the Bank at an initial conversion price of
¥2,002 per share of common stock, subject to adjustment in certain limited circumstances. The conversion price
will be reset initially on October 1, 1997 and on October 1 of each year thereafter through October 1, 2001 to
the then prevailing average market price of the shares of common stock, if lower than the conversion price
prior to such reset, but not lower than 65% of the initial conversion price. All outstanding preference shares on
February 1, 2002 will be subject to mandatory conversion into shares of common stock.

The number of preference shares can be obtained by multiplying (i) the number of such preference shares by
(ii) the product obtained by dividing ¥3,000 by the higher of (a) the average of the closing prices of the Bank’s
shares of common stock for 30 consecutive trading days commencing on the 45th trading day prior to the final
mandatory conversion date, and (b) 35% of the initial conversion price, and such shares of common stock will be
delivered to the holders of the preference shares. 

Under the Banking Law of Japan, an amount equivalent to at least 20 percent of any distrib-
ution of earned surplus must be appropriated to the legal reserve until the reserve equals 100
percent of the stated capital. This reserve is not available for dividends but may be used to
reduce a def icit or may be transferred to the common stock account.
Information relating to the legal reserve is summarized as follows:

Millions of yen
1998 1997

Balance at beginning of year...................................................................... ¥ 00,000 ¥00,000
Transfer from earned surplus .....................................................................

Balance at end of year ............................................................................... ¥ 00,000 ¥00,000

The composition of trading revenue for the years ended March 31, 1998 and 1997 was 
as follows:

Millions of yen
1998 *1997

Revenue from trading securities and derivatives ................................... ¥ 000,00 ¥ —
Revenue from securities and derivatives related to 
trading transactions..............................................................................

Revenue from trading-related f inancial derivatives transactions .............
Other trading revenue...........................................................................

* Differences in the basis of presentation mean that f igures for 1997 are not comparable, and
have therefore been excluded.

—

—
—
—

¥ —

28,298

6,239
19,366
3,008

¥ 56,913

82,253
4,362

86,616

86,616
2,600

89,216

16. Legal Reserve

17. Trading Revenue

18. Other Operating 
Income and 
Other Income

19. Other Operating 
Expenses and 
Other Expenses

Other Operating Income
The composition of other operating income for the years ended March 31, 1998 and 1997
was as follows:

Millions of yen
1998 1997

Gains on foreign exchange transactions ................................................ ¥ 000,000 ¥00,000
Gains on trading account securities transactions.....................................
Gains on sales of bonds..........................................................................
Gains on redemption of bonds...............................................................
Other ....................................................................................................

Due to the amendment of the Enforcement Regulations of the Banking Law, “Gains on
trading account securities transactions” has been included in “ Trading revenue” since the
f iscal year ended March 31, 1998.

Other Income
The composition of other income for the years ended March 31, 1998 and 1997 was as follows:

Millions of yen
1998 1997

Gains on sales of stocks and other securities ........................................... ¥ 000,000 ¥000,000
Gains on money held in trust ................................................................
Gains on disposal of premises and equipment ........................................
Collection of written-off claims ............................................................
Reversal of reserve for price f luctuation of Japanese national 
government bonds ..............................................................................

Reversal of reserve for possible losses on trading account securities........
Reversal of reserve for securities transaction liabilities............................
Other ....................................................................................................

¥ 000,000 ¥000,000

Other Operating Expenses
The composition of other operating expenses for the years ended March 31, 1998 and 1997
was as follows:

Millions of yen
1998 1997

Losses on sales of bonds ............................................................................. ¥ 00,000 ¥00,000
Losses on redemption of bonds ..................................................................
Losses on devaluation of bonds..................................................................
Other ........................................................................................................

¥ 00,000 ¥00,000

45,908
2,267

186
6,928

55,291

28,561
2,864

472
14,917

46,816

301,495
485

33,329
48

—
—
3

10,107

345,469

275,928
904

45,814
70

7,513
13,362

5
6,469

350,069

5,840
3,034

83,095
1,806
3,161

¥96,938

18,822
—

105,512
3,834

23,334

¥ 151,504
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Other Expenses
The composition of other expenses for the years ended March 31, 1998 and 1997 was as follows:

Millions of yen
1998 1997

Transfer to reserve for possible loan losses ........................................... ¥ 000,000 ¥0,000,000
Write-off of loans...............................................................................
Losses on sales of stocks and other securities .......................................
Losses on devaluation of stocks and other securities ............................
Losses on money held in trust.............................................................
Losses on disposal of premises and equipment .....................................
Transfer to reserve for price f luctuation of Japanese national 
government bonds............................................................................

Transfer to reserve for possible losses on trading account 
securities transactions........................................................................

Transfer to reserve for f inancial futures transaction liabilities ..............
Transfer to reserve for securities transaction liabilities .........................
Losses on sales of loans collateralized by real estate to 
Cooperative Credit Purchase Company ............................................

Other .................................................................................................

“Other” in “Other Expenses” for the year ended March 31, 1998 includes losses of ¥226,637 
million incurred from supporting certain borrowers, including Japan Mortgage Co., Ltd.

“Other” in “Other Expenses” for the year ended March 31, 1997 includes losses of ¥35,467
million incurred from supporting certain borrowers.

Income taxes in Japan applicable to the Bank and its domestic subsidiaries for the years ended
March 31, 1998 and 1997 comprised corporation tax, inhabitants’ taxes and enterprise tax at
the approximate rates indicated below:

1998 1997

Corporation tax ................................................................................................
Inhabitants’ taxes ..............................................................................................
Enterprise tax ...................................................................................................

Enterprise tax is included in “Other Expenses” in the accompanying consolidated statements
of income.

Unlike other income taxes, enterprise tax is deductible for tax purposes when paid.
Accordingly, the effective tax rate on income was approximately 51.3 percent for the years ended
March 31, 1998 and 1997.

The consolidated foreign subsidiaries are subject to the income taxes of the respective coun-
tries in which they operate.

37.5%
7.7%

12.5%

57.7%

37.5%
7.7%

12.5%

57.7%

151,951
25,767

233
191,048

3,234
9,553

33

101
14
1

83,157
137,836

¥602,934

326,519
68,966
2,137

56,999
1,817
5,027

—

503
16
1

202,768
463,478

¥ 1,128,236

22. Segment Information
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21. Lease Transactions Other Finance Leases
Lessors
The total lease amounts due from the lessee under other f inance leases, where the ownership
of the property is not deemed to have been transferred to the lessee, and total lease amounts
received at March 31, 1998 and 1997 were as follows:

Millions of yen
1998 1997

Due within one year........................................................................... ¥ 355 ¥*—
Greater than one year ......................................................................... 627 *—

.................................................................................................. ¥ 983 ¥*—

Total lease amounts received............................................................... ¥ 497 ¥213

Lessees
The total lease amounts due to  the lessor under other f inance leases, where the ownership
of the property is not deemed to have been transferred to the lessee, and total lease amounts
paid at March 31, 1998 and 1997 were as follows:

Millions of yen
1998 1997

Due within one year........................................................................... ¥ 0,574 ¥*—
Greater than one year ......................................................................... 949 *—

.................................................................................................. ¥ 1,524 ¥*—

Total lease amounts paid..................................................................... ¥ 0,697 ¥547

Operating Leases
The total lease amounts due to the lessor under operating leases at March 31, 1998 and 
1997 were as follows:

Millions of yen
1998 *1997

Due within one year........................................................................... ¥ 06,704 ¥—
Greater than one year ......................................................................... 43,540 —

Total lease amounts received............................................................... ¥ 50,245 ¥—

* Differences in the basis of presentation mean that f igures for 1997 are not comparable, and
have therefore been excluded.

(a) Business Segment Information
Certain consolidated subsidiaries are engaged in securities, trust, leasing, and other businesses
in addition to the commercial banking business. As those activities are not deemed material,
business segment information has not been disclosed.
(b) Geographic Segment Information
Total adjusted income represents total income excluding “Gains on disposal of premises and
equipment”, “Collection of written-off-claims” and reversals of “Other Reserves”.

Total adjusted expenses represents total expenses excluding “Losses on disposal of premises
and equipment” and transfers to “Other Reserves”.

The following tables represent geographic segment information on the Total adjusted
income, Ordinary prof it (loss) and Assets of the Bank’s head off ice, branches and subsidiaries
according to the country of domicile of the respective entities.

The Bank changed the method of accounting for securities referred to in Note 2 (d).
This inf luenced the result as indicated in the segment information on Japan.

20. Income Taxes
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The Board of Directors
The Fuji Bank, Limited

We have examined the consolidated balance sheets of The Fuji Bank, Limited and consolidated subsidiaries
as of March 31, 1998 and 1997, and the related consolidated statements of income, earned surplus and
cash f lows for the years then ended, all expressed in Japanese yen. Our examinations were made in accor-
dance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan and, accordingly, included such tests of the
accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinion, the f inancial statements referred to above, expressed in Japanese yen, present fairly the
consolidated f inancial position of The Fuji Bank, Limited and consolidated subsidiaries at  March 31, 1998
and 1997, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash f lows for the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan consistently applied during the period
except for the change, with which we concur, in the method of accounting for securities as described in
Note 2 (d) to the consolidated f inancial statements.

The U.S. dollar amounts in the accompanying consolidated f inancial statements with respect to the year
ended March 31, 1998 are presented solely for convenience. Our examination also included the translation
of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in our opinion, such translation has been made on
the basis described in Note 1 to the consolidated f inancial statements.

Tokyo, Japan
June 26, 1998

Showa Ota & Co.

Report of Independent Certified Public 
Accountants on the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. Subsequent Events

Millions of yen
Combined Elimination Consolidated

Year ended March 31, 1998 Japan Foreign* Total /Corporate Total

I.  Total adjusted income:
Customers................. ¥01,448,385 ¥01,094,014 ¥02,812,522 ¥00,0(384— ¥02,812,522
Intersegment ............. 158,201 417,610 (417,610) —

................................. 1,606,586 3,230,133 (417,610) 2,812,522
Total adjusted expenses .. 2,189,234 3,708,994 (379,176) 3,329,817
Ordinary prof it (loss) .... ¥00(582,647) ¥01,094,014 ¥00(478,861) ¥00.0(38,433) ¥00(517,295)

II. Assets ........................... ¥44,653,364 ¥01,094,014 ¥66,201,238 ¥(11,087,728) ¥55,113,509
* Foreign amounts consisted of the following:

Millions of yen
The Americas Asia and Oceania Europe

I.  Total adjusted income:
Customers ................... ¥0,748,474 ¥0.356,614 ¥0,259,048
Intersegment ............... ¥00,47,581 ¥0,102,053 ¥0,109,774

................................... ¥00,796,055 ¥0,458,668 ¥0,368,822
I.  Total adjusted expenses ....... ¥00,725,667 ¥0,456,434 ¥0,337,658
I.  Ordinary prof it (loss) ......... ¥00,70,387 ¥00.02,234 ¥0.031,164
II. Assets................................. ¥9,447,530 ¥8,235,922 ¥3,864,420

Millions of yen
Combined Elimination Consolidated

Year ended March 31, 1997 Domestic Foreign Total /Corporate Total

I.  Total adjusted income:
Customers................. ¥01,617,297 ¥01,094,014 ¥02,711,312 ¥(00,00,0— ¥02,711,312
Intersegment ............. 278,985 186,809 465,794 (465,794) —

................................. 1,896,283 1,280,823 3,177,106 (465,794) 2,711,312
Total adjusted expenses.. 1,929,828 1,168,207 3,098,035 (462,148) 2,635,887
Ordinary prof it (loss).... ¥000(33,545) ¥00,112,616 ¥00(079,071 ¥0,00(3,646) ¥0(0075,425

II. Assets ........................... ¥38,791,585 ¥23,238,311 ¥62,029,897 ¥(5,818,743) ¥56,211,154

(c) Total Adjusted Income from International Operations

Millions of yen
Years ended March 31, 1998 1997

(i) Total adjusted income from international operations..................... ¥ 0,000,000 ¥ 0,000,000

(ii) Consolidated total adjusted income ............................................. ¥ 0,000,000 ¥ 0,000,000

(i)/(ii) ..............................................................................................

Total adjusted income from international operations represents the sum of total adjusted
income generated from the international operations of the Bank and domestic consolidated
subsidiaries, and total adjusted income of its consolidated foreign subsidiaries excluding all
intercompany transactions within the Fuji Bank Group.

At a general meeting of stockholders held on June 26, 1998 a year-end dividend of ¥8.50
per share of common stock totalling ¥24,629 million, and of ¥7.50 per share of preferred
stock totalling ¥525 million were approved in respect of the year ended March 31, 1998. In
accordance with Japanese accounting practice, these dividends were not accrued and have
not been ref lected in the f inancial statements for the year ended March 31, 1998.

1,578,911

2,711,312

58.2%

1,779,636

2,812,522

63.2%

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fuji Bank Group
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Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

March 31, 1998 1997 1998

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities
Deposits ............................................................................................ ¥ 00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 $000,000,000
Call Money and Bills Sold .................................................................
Trading Liabilities ..............................................................................
Borrowed Money ..............................................................................
Foreign Exchange..............................................................................
Bonds ................................................................................................
Convertible Bonds and Notes............................................................
Other Liabilities.................................................................................
Reserve for Possible Loan Losses........................................................
Reserve for Retirement Allowances ...................................................
*Other Reserves................................................................................
Acceptances and Guarantees .............................................................
Land Revaluation Account ...............................................................

Total Liabilities......................................................................

Stockholders’ Equity
Capital Stock ....................................................................................
Capital Surplus ..................................................................................
Legal Reserve....................................................................................
Voluntary Reserve.............................................................................
Special Reserves ................................................................................
Unappropriated Prof it (Loss) ............................................................. ) )

Total Stockholders’ Equity ....................................................
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity...................... ¥ 00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 $000,000,000

* Includes “Reserve for Specific Borrowers under Support,” the balance of which as of March 31, 1998 was  ¥122,300 million.

260,732,073
17,082,422
11,041,232
25,281,033

952,029
757,002
95,247

21,863,566
6,491,232

365,193
1,325,250

29,644,149
2,471,834

378,102,262

4,005,201
3,179,063

675,369
4,465,556

162
(3,689,579
8,635,772

386,738,034

38,279,142
2,943,951

—
2,442,739

96,415
—

12,582
1,476,390

983,607
48,816
59,726

4,051,392
—

50,394,764

529,087
419,954
86,616

580,900
26

55,480
1,672,064

52,066,828

34,442,706
2,256,587
1,458,546
3,339,624

125,762
100,000
12,582

2,888,177
857,491
48,241

175,065
3,915,992

326,529
49,947,308

529,087
419,954
89,216

589,900
21

(487,393
1,140,785

51,088,094

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

March 31, 1998 1997 1998

ASSETS

Cash and Due from Banks ................................................................. ¥ 00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 $000,000,000

Call Loans and Bills Purchased ..........................................................

Commercial Paper and Other Debt Purchased...................................

Trading Assets ...................................................................................

Trading Account Securities................................................................

Money Held in Trust.........................................................................

Securities...........................................................................................

Loans and Bills Discounted................................................................

Foreign Exchange .............................................................................

Other Assets ......................................................................................

Premises and Equipment....................................................................

Customers’ Liabilities for Acceptances and Guarantees.......................
Total Assets......................................................................... ¥ 00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 $000,000,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

20,817,012

2,010,167

226,032

17,213,413

—

646,723

47,318,553

242,472,293

4,159,090

17,135,691

5,094,911

29,644,149
386,738,034

4,320,845

1,018,094

55,897

—

64,899

117,271

5,774,496

34,037,300

524,653

1,759,101

342,876

4,051,392
52,066,828

2,749,927

265,542

29,858

2,273,891

—

85,432

6,250,780

32,030,589

549,415

2,263,624

673,037

3,915,992
51,088,094

Balance Sheet

NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Fuji Bank, Limited
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Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Years ended March 31, 1998 1997 1998

INCOME
Interest Income:

Interest on Loans and Discounts .......................................................... ¥ 0,000,000 ¥0,000,000 $00,000,000
Interest and Dividends on Securities ....................................................
Other Interest Income.........................................................................

Fees and Commissions.............................................................................
Trading Revenue ....................................................................................
Other Operating Income ........................................................................
Other Income .........................................................................................

Total Income ..............................................................................

EXPENSES
Interest Expenses:

Interest on Deposits.............................................................................
Interest on Borrowings and Rediscounts..............................................
Other Interest Expenses.......................................................................

Fees and Commissions.............................................................................
Trading Expenses.....................................................................................
Other Operating Expenses.......................................................................
General and Administrative Expenses ......................................................
Other Expenses .......................................................................................

Total Expenses ............................................................................
Income (Loss) before Income Taxes.......................................................... ) )
Provision for Income Taxes......................................................................
Net Income (Loss) ............................................................................... ¥ 0,000,000) ¥0,000,000 $00,000,000)

7,654,653
1,157,465
6,393,079

15,205,197
831,097
144,289
960,851

2,580,671
19,722,105

5,212,856
840,208

5,344,326
11,397,390

338,960
3,917

337,729
2,920,371
8,620,756

23,619,123
(3,897,018

29,566
(3,926,584

995,864
125,479

1,000,584
2,121,928

107,584
—

92,535
331,859

2,653,908

679,350
98,880

744,216
1,522,447

42,941
—

55,296
380,434
598,004

2,599,125
54,783

787
53,995

1,011,179
152,901
844,525

2,008,606
109,787
19,060

126,928
340,906

2,605,290

688,618
110,991
705,985

1,505,595
44,776

517
44,614

385,780
1,138,801
3,120,086
(514,796

3,905
(518,701

Statement of Income

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Years ended March 31, 1998 1997 1998

Net Income (Loss) ................................................................................... ¥ 000(,000) ¥0000,000 $0,0(00,000)
Unappropriated Prof it at Beginning of Year ............................................ )
Transfer from Special Reserves ................................................................

Total ........................................................................................... ) )
Appropriations:

Legal Reserve .....................................................................................
Voluntary Reserve ..............................................................................
Special Reserves..................................................................................
Dividends............................................................................................

Total ...........................................................................................
Unappropriated Prof it (Loss) at End of Year ............................................ ¥ 000(,000) ¥0000,000 $0,0(00,000)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

(3,926,584
419,987

53
(3,506,544

19,682
68,130

12
95,211

183,035
(3,689,579

53,995
(407,427
435,007
81,574

4,362
—
—

21,731
26,094
55,480

(518,701
55,480

7
(463,214

2,600
9,000

1
12,577
24,179

(487,393

Statement of Appropriation of Profit

NON-CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Fuji Bank, Limited

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Years ended March 31, 1998 1997 1998

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest on Loans and Discounts Received ......................................................................................... ¥0,000,000 ¥0,000,000 $00,000,000
Interest and Dividends on Securities Received ...................................................................................
Interest on Call Loans ........................................................................................................................
Interest on Bills Purchased .................................................................................................................
Interest on Due from Banks ...............................................................................................................
Interest on Interest Rate Swaps, etc....................................................................................................
Fees and Commissions Received........................................................................................................
Other Operating Revenue.................................................................................................................

Total .........................................................................................................................................
Interest on Deposits Paid....................................................................................................................
Interest on Call Money Paid ..............................................................................................................
Interest on Bills Sold Paid, etc. ..........................................................................................................
Interest on Bonds Paid .......................................................................................................................
Interest on Convertible Bonds Paid....................................................................................................
Interest on Interest Rate Swaps Paid ..................................................................................................
Fees and Commissions Paid................................................................................................................
Other Operating Expenditures ...........................................................................................................
General and Administrative Expenses Paid .........................................................................................

Total .........................................................................................................................................
Net Decrease in Due from Banks (excluding Deposits with the Bank of Japan) ..................................
Net Decrease (Increase) in Call Loans ................................................................................................ )
Net Decrease (Increase) in Bills Purchased ......................................................................................... )
Net Decrease in Commercial Paper and Other Debt Purchased .........................................................
Net Increase in Trading Accounts ...................................................................................................... ) )
Net Proceeds from Trading Account Securities Transactions..............................................................
Net Proceeds from (Expenditures of ) National Government Bonds and Other Transactions.............. ) )
Net Decrease (Increase) in Loans and Bills Discounted ...................................................................... )
Net Increase in Foreign Exchange...................................................................................................... ) ) )
Net Decrease in Domestic Exchange Settlement Debits .....................................................................
Net Increase in Other Assets .............................................................................................................. ) ) )

Total ......................................................................................................................................... )
Net Increase (Decrease) in Deposits and Other................................................................................... ) )
Net Decrease in Call Money and Borrowed Money........................................................................... ) ) )
Net Increase (Decrease) in Bills Sold .................................................................................................. )
Net Increase in Foreign Exchange......................................................................................................
Net Decrease in Domestic Exchange Settlement Credits .................................................................... ) ) )
Net Increase in Other Liabilities.........................................................................................................

Total ......................................................................................................................................... ) )
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities ...................................................... )

CASH FLOWS FROM OTHER ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Sales of Stocks and Other............................................................................................
Proceeds from Settlements of Money Held in Trust ...........................................................................
Proceeds from Sales of Premises and Equipment.................................................................................
Other Proceeds .................................................................................................................................

Total .........................................................................................................................................
Purchases of Stocks and Other ...........................................................................................................
Investments on Money Held in Trust.................................................................................................
Purchases of Premises and Equipment ................................................................................................
Other Payments .................................................................................................................................

Total .........................................................................................................................................
Net Cash Used in Other Activities....................................................................................... ) ) )

DIVIDENDS, INCOME TAXES AND OTHER PAYMENTS
Dividends Paid...................................................................................................................................
Income Taxes Paid.............................................................................................................................

Total .........................................................................................................................................
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issuance of Preferred Stock ................................................................................................................
Issuance of Bonds and Notes ..............................................................................................................

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents ...................................................................... ) ) )
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year ..........................................................................
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year..................................................................................... ¥0,000,000 ¥0,000,000 $00,000,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

7,522,081
1,177,590

124,294
1,368

1,183,681
4,526,583

830,727
261,523

15,627,847
5,243,803

212,865
584,777

—
1,449

4,168,881
359,861
102,553

2,599,405
13,273,594
10,434,931
2,674,119
3,022,710

197,110
(5,543,788

—
(1,211,931
11,253,910

(189,684
4,176

(3,814,822
16,826,731

(29,041,903
(3,913,325
5,499,412

222,162
(4,492

9,476,329
(17,761,817

1,419,167

9,857,390
1,813,712

419,306
37,271

12,127,679
10,075,678
1,583,165

367,959
3,613,706

15,640,508
(3,512,829

95,211
25,085

120,296

—
757,002

(1,456,956
9,286,590
7,829,634

956,422
129,538
19,356

209
179,706
706,366
107,190
57,998

2,156,789
693,909
31,571
68,093

—
178

639,876
42,645
7,035

339,085
1,822,395

969,351
(51,660

(116,400
26,150

—
331,992
182,423

(1,858,538
(76,996

4,812
(234,920
(823,784

1,314,045
(855,339
(635,057

12,454
(4,672

276,102
107,531

(381,859

1,326,568
82,316
37,847
6,800

1,453,532
1,344,613

47,519
53,876
96,794

1,542,804
(89,272

21,731
767

22,499

210,000
—

(283,631
1,510,389
1,226,758

993,666
155,559
16,419

180
156,364
597,961
109,739
34,547

2,064,438
692,706
28,119
77,249

—
191

550,709
47,537
13,547

343,381
1,753,441
1,378,454

353,251
399,300
26,038

(732,334
—

(160,096
1,486,641

(25,057
551

(503,938
2,222,811

(3,836,435
(516,950
726,472
29,347

(593
1,251,823

(2,346,336
187,471

1,302,161
239,591
55,390
4,923

1,602,066
1,330,997

209,136
48,607

477,370
2,066,111
(464,044

12,577
3,313

15,891

—
100,000

(192,463
1,226,758
1,034,294

NON-CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Fuji Bank, Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
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The Board of Directors
The Fuji Bank, Limited

We have examined the non-consolidated balance sheets of The Fuji Bank, Limited as of March 31, 1998
and 1997, and the related non-consolidated statements of income, appropriation of prof it and cash f lows
for the years then ended, all expressed in Japanese yen. Our examinations were made in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in Japan and, accordingly, included such tests of the accounting
records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinion, the f inancial statements referred to above, expressed in Japanese yen, present fairly 
the non-consolidated f inancial position of The Fuji Bank, Limited at March 31, 1998 and 1997, and the
non-consolidated results of its operations and its cash f lows for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan consistently applied during the period except for the
change, with which we concur, in the method of accounting for securities as described in Note 2 (a) to
the non-consolidated f inancial statements.

The U.S. dollar amounts in the accompanying non-consolidated f inancial statements with respect to the
year ended March 31, 1998 are presented solely for convenience. Our examination also included the trans-
lation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in our opinion, such translation has been
made on the basis described in Note 1 of the Notes to the non-consolidated f inancial statements.

Tokyo, Japan
June 26, 1998

Showa Ota & Co.

The Fuji Bank, Limited (“Fuji Bank”) maintains its accounting records and prepares its
f inancial statements in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally
accepted in Japan, the Commercial Code of Japan, the Banking Law of Japan and the 
Rules for Bank Accounting issued by the Ministry of Finance and the accompanying 
non-consolidated f inancial statements have been prepared from the non-consolidated 
f inancial statements f iled with the Minister of Finance as required by the Banking Law 
of Japan and the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan.

For the convenience of readers outside Japan, certain items presented in the original
f inancial statements have been reclassif ied and rearranged.

As permitted by the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan, amounts less than one 
million yen have been omitted. As a result, the totals in yen shown in the accompanying
non-consolidated f inancial statements for the years ended March 31, 1998 and 1997 do 
not necessarily agree with the sum of the individual amounts.

Amounts in U.S. dollars are included solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan. 
The rate of ¥132.10 =U.S.$1, the rate of exchange on March 31, 1998, has been used in
translation.  The inclusion of such amounts is not intended to imply that Japanese yen have
been or could be readily converted, realized or settled in U.S. dollars at that rate or any 
other rate.

(a) Securities
Securities are stated at the moving average cost method.

Effective April 1, 1997, the Bank changed its method of valuation of listed securities and listed securities held
in separately managed trusts, including in the securities account from the lower of cost or market to the moving
average cost method. Japanese government bonds have been stated at the moving average cost method prior to
this change. The effect of this change in accounting for securities resulted in a decrease of loss before income
taxes of ¥433,195 million.

(b) Other Significant Accounting Policies
Refer to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

In accordance with the Rules for Bank Accounting in Japan, the balance of “Loans and Bills
Discounted” at March 31, 1998 includes the following nonaccrual loans; loans to customers
under bankruptcy procedures, amounting to ¥257,512 million, and loans past due for 6
months or more as to interest payment, amounting to ¥733,762 million.

The balance of renegotiated loans at the end of March, 1998 was ¥186,390 million.
Renegotiated loans include loans of which the interest rates were cut to or below the off icial
discount rate at the time of restructuring, or loans extended on a negative spread basis in 
order to support borrowers’ rehabilitation, and nonaccrual loans which were approved as
such by the National Tax Agency. Items which until now have been classif ied as restructured
loans are now called renegotiated loans.

The balance of loans to companies under support programs as of March 31, 1998 was
¥40,770 million. Loans to companies under support programs refers to loans extended to
borrowers which have encountered economic diff iculty and which the Bank supports in 
various ways with the approval of the National Tax Agency.

The information of net income (loss) per share of common stock is as follows:

Yen
Years ended March 31, 1998 1997

Net Income (Loss) ............................................................................ ¥(179.19) ¥ 18.54

Net income (loss) per share of common stock is computed based on the average number of
shares of common stock outstanding during the year, adjusted for the preferred stock dividend.

3. Loans and Bills
Discounted

2. Significant Accounting
Policies of The Fuji
Bank, Limited

1. Basis of Presentation

4. Net Income (Loss) 
per Share

NOTES TO NON-CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Fuji Bank, Limited Report of Independent Certified Public 

Accountants on the Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
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Billions of yen

1998 1997 1996

Average Average Average Average Average Average
Years ended March 31, balance Interest rate balance Interest rate balance Interest rate

Assets

Interest-Earning Assets

Interest-Bearing Deposits in Other Banks:

Domestic .......................................... ¥00,000,000 ¥0,000,000 00.00% ¥00,000,000 ¥0,000,0 00.00% ¥00,000,000 ¥0,000,000 00.00%

International ......................................

Total .............................................

Call Loans:

Domestic ..........................................

International ......................................

Total .............................................

Trading Account Securities:

Domestic ..........................................

International ......................................

Total .............................................

Investment Securities:

Domestic ..........................................

International ......................................

Total .............................................

Loans:

Domestic ..........................................

International ......................................

Total .............................................

Total Interest-Earning Assets:

Domestic ..........................................

* ........................................

International ......................................

Total ............................................. ¥00,000,000 ¥0,000,000 00.00% ¥00,000,000 ¥0,0,000 00.00% ¥00,000,000 ¥0,000,000 00.00%

1.57

5.21

5.13

0.70

6.19

3.52

0.30

—

0.30

2.27

3.42

2.38

2.87

4.54

3.38

2.89

....

10.07

5.48

1.7

266.4

268.2

2.1

20.2

22.4

0.9

—

0.9

128.0

19.5

147.5

639.8

441.2

1,081.0

856.9

6.7

1,627.9

2,478.1

113.6

5,107.7

5,221.3

310.4

326.4

636.8

312.7

—

312.7

5,619.6

569.7

6,189.3

22,225.8

9,704.8

31,930.7

29,572.6

554.5

16,150.9

45,169.0

0.61

4.05

3.97

0.56

5.63

2.64

0.63

—

0.63

1.87

3.74

2.05

2.35

4.01

2.93

2.39

....

8.50

4.71

0.5

153.1

153.7

2.3

16.0

18.3

2.0

—

2.0

101.0

22.3

123.4

512.4

464.9

977.4

704.0

7.9

1,425.7

2,121.9

91.5

3,780.8

3,872.4

408.0

284.1

692.1

324.8

—

324.8

5,400.9

597.4

5,998.3

21,718.0

11,577.3

33,295.3

29,344.9

1,073.8

16,770.4

45,041.5

0.45

4.34

4.28

0.58

5.73

3.12

—

—

—

1.69

8.94

2.46

2.19

4.20

2.89

2.24

....

8.02

4.44

0.2

148.9

149.1

1.4

13.8

15.3

—

—

—

94.2

58.6

152.9

491.2

504.3

995.5

658.8

7.2

1,357.0

2,008.6

52.7

3,426.2

3,479.0

247.9

241.3

489.2

—

—

—

5,552.4

656.3

6,208.8

22,362.4

11,983.2

34,345.6

29,337.2

1,069.0

16,913.3

45,181.5

DATA FILE (NON-CONSOLIDATED)
The Fuji Bank, Limited

Billions of yen

1998 1997 1996

Average Average Average Average Average Average
Years ended March 31, balance Interest rate balance Interest rate balance Interest rate

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Deposits:

Domestic .......................................... ¥00,000,000 ¥0,000,000 00.00% ¥00,000,000 ¥0,000,000 00.00% ¥00,000,000 ¥0,000,000 00.00%

International ......................................

Total .............................................

Call Money:

Domestic ..........................................

International ......................................

Total .............................................

Borrowed Money:

Domestic ..........................................

International ......................................

Total .............................................

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit:

Domestic ..........................................

International ......................................

Total .............................................

Bills Sold:

Domestic ..........................................

International ......................................

Total .............................................

Total Interest-Bearing Liabilities:

Domestic ..........................................

International ......................................

* ..........................................

Total ............................................. ¥00,000,000 ¥0,000,000 00.00% ¥00,000,000 ¥0,000,000 00.00% ¥00,000,000 ¥0,000,000 00.00%

1.07

4.09

2.28

0.85

6.16

1.31

2.85

3.60

2.97

0.82

6.22

2.54

0.75

5.78

2.31

1.43

8.72

....

4.12

221.2

566.7

787.9

31.9

21.5

53.5

48.7

11.7

60.4

14.5

51.3

65.8

4.1

13.9

18.0

408.1

1,414.1

6.7

1,815.4

20,645.4

13,849.5

34,494.9

3,717.5

350.3

4,067.9

1,708.0

326.2

2,034.3

1,760.6

825.3

2,585.9

540.3

241.3

781.7

28,344.9

16,204.4

554.5

43,994.7

0.60

3.56

1.78

0.50

4.89

0.85

2.69

2.79

2.71

0.55

5.81

1.96

0.49

5.05

2.04

1.11

7.23

....

3.45

126.4

490.5

617.0

16.2

13.4

29.6

42.8

13.2

56.1

12.8

49.4

62.3

2.0

11.0

13.1

316.9

1,211.7

7.9

1,520.8

20,829.3

13,776.5

34,605.9

3,190.7

275.1

3,465.9

1,590.0

474.9

2,064.9

2,322.9

849.7

3,172.7

423.7

217.8

641.5

28,308.3

16,745.4

1,073.8

43,980.0

0.51

3.75

1.78

0.57

5.33

0.92

2.44

3.45

2.77

0.64

6.39

2.20

0.63

5.61

3.07

1.09

7.09

....

3.41

106.8

509.2

616.0

17.2

12.7

29.9

40.8

28.0

68.9

15.4

57.0

72.5

1.2

10.8

12.0

308.5

1,203.1

7.2

1,504.3

20,900.9

13,569.9

34,470.8

3,001.9

238.7

3,240.7

1,672.7

812.5

2,485.3

2,393.2

893.1

3,286.3

201.0

192.4

393.5

28,118.1

16,956.3

1,069.0

44,005.4

Earnings Performance
Average Balances, Interest and Average Interest Rates

Note : * Internal transaction between domestic sector and international sector. Notes : * 1. Internal transaction between domestic sector and international sector.
2. Interest expenses on money held in trust is deducted from total interest bearing liabilities.
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Billions of yen

Years ended March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Income
Deposit and Loan-Related:

Domestic ............................................................................................................................... ¥0,000,000 ¥0,000,000 ¥0,000,000
International ..........................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................

Remittance:
Domestic ...............................................................................................................................
International ..........................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................

Securities-Related:
Domestic ...............................................................................................................................
International ..........................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................

Safe Deposit Box:
Domestic ...............................................................................................................................
International ..........................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................

Guarantees:
Domestic ...............................................................................................................................
International ..........................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................

Agent:
Domestic ...............................................................................................................................
International ..........................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................

Total Income:
Domestic ...............................................................................................................................
International ..........................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................ ¥0,000,000 ¥0,000,000 ¥0,000,000

Expense
Remittance:

Domestic ............................................................................................................................... ¥0,000,000 ¥0,000,000 ¥0,000,000
International ..........................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................

Total Expenses:
Domestic ...............................................................................................................................
International ..........................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................ ¥0,000,000 ¥0,000,000 ¥0,000,000

3.6
11.9
15.5

34.3
9.9

44.2

11.7
0.1

11.9

3.0
0.0
3.0

0.5
7.2
7.7

10.1
0.8

10.9

70.3
39.3

109.6

8.7
3.3

12.1

29.0
14.3
43.3

3.6
14.4
18.1

35.8
10.6
46.5

7.9
0.3
8.3

2.9
0.0
2.9

0.6
7.3
7.9

10.3
1.3

11.7

68.5
38.9

107.5

8.8
3.5

12.4

29.8
13.1
42.9

4.1
16.1
20.2

37.6
11.3
49.0

6.4
0.1
6.6

2.9
—
2.9

0.6
7.4
8.1

9.7
1.5

11.3

70.7
39.0

109.7

9.5
4.0

13.5

31.6
13.0
44.7

Breakdown of Fee & Commission IncomeBreakdown of Changes of Net Interest Income

Billions of yen

1998 1997 1996

Years ended March 31, Volume Rate Net Change Volume Rate Net Change Volume Rate Net Change

Interest Income
Interest-Bearing Deposits in Other Banks:

Domestic .......................................... ¥ (00.0) ¥ (000.0) ¥ (000.0) ¥ (00.0) ¥ (000.0) ¥ (000.0) ¥ (00.0 ¥ (000.0 ¥ (000.0
International ...................................... ) ) ) ) ) ) )

Total ............................................. ) ) ) ) ) ) )
Call Loans:

Domestic .......................................... ) ) ) )
International ...................................... ) ) ) ) ) )

Total ............................................. ) ) ) ) )
Investment Securities:

Domestic .......................................... ) ) ) ) ) ) )
International ......................................

Total ............................................. ) ) ) ) )
Trading Account Securities:

Domestic .......................................... ) ) )
International ......................................

Total ............................................. ) ) )
Loans:

Domestic .......................................... ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
International ...................................... ) )

Total ............................................. ) ) ) ) )
Total Interest Income:

Domestic .......................................... ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
International ...................................... ) ) ) )

Total ............................................. ¥ (00.0 ¥ (000.0) ¥ (000.0) ¥ (00.0) ¥ (000.0) ¥ (000.0) ¥ (00.0 ¥ (000.0 ¥ (000.0

Interest Expense
Deposits:

Domestic .......................................... ¥ (00.0 ¥ (000.0) ¥ (000.0) ¥ (00.0 ¥ (000.0) ¥ (000.0) ¥ (00.0 ¥ (000.0) ¥ (000.0)
International ...................................... ) ) ) )

Total ............................................. ) ) ) ) ) )
Call Money:

Domestic .......................................... ) ) ) ) ) )
International ...................................... ) ) ) ) )

Total ............................................. ) ) ) ) ) )
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit:

Domestic .......................................... ) ) ) )
International ...................................... ) )

Total ............................................. ) ) )
Bills Sold:

Domestic .......................................... ) ) ) ) ) ) )
International ...................................... ) ) ) ) )

Total ............................................. ) ) ) ) ) ) )
Borrowed Money:

Domestic .......................................... ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
International ...................................... ) )

Total ............................................. ) ) ) ) )
Total Interest Expense:

Domestic .......................................... ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
International ...................................... ) ) ) )

Total ............................................. ¥ (00.0 ¥ (000.0) ¥ (000.0) ¥ (00.0) ¥ (000.0) ¥ (000.0) ¥ (00.0 ¥ (000.0 ¥ (000.0

0.7
(4.6
(3.9

1.4
3.2
4.6

(21.9
1.7

(20.2

(3.1
—

(3.1

(194.7
65.1

(129.5

(244.7
495.6
252.2

(155.2
28.7

(126.5

(49.5
2.8

(46.7

(17.1
25.3
8.1

(6.9
2.7

(4.1

(20.5
1.4

(19.1

(270.4
416.6
147.6

0.2
32.0
30.9

(0.5
3.3

(5.0

(29.2
1.1

(28.2

(2.8
—

(2.8

(171.2
(23.4

(168.9

(251.2
408.3
194.0

(156.2
7.8

(140.0

(50.0
2.5

(47.6

(19.9
3.5

(9.6

(7.3
1.8

(5.6

(12.6
(2.5

(14.7

(273.6
337.1
101.3

0.4
(36.6
(34.8

1.9
(0.1
9.7

7.2
0.5
7.9

(0.3
—

(0.3

(23.4
88.6
39.3

6.5
87.2
58.2

0.9
20.9
13.4

0.5
0.2
0.8

2.8
21.7
17.7

0.3
0.8
1.4

(7.9
4.0

(4.4

3.2
79.5
46.2

(1.2
(113.2
(114.4

0.1
(4.2
(4.1

(26.9
2.8

(24.1

1.1
—
1.1

(127.3
23.7

(103.5

(152.8
(202.1
(356.2

(94.7
(76.1

(170.9

(15.7
(8.1

(23.8

(1.6
(1.9
(3.5

(2.0
(2.9
(4.9

(5.8
1.4

(4.3

(91.1
(202.3
(294.6

(1.0
(51.1
(52.5

(0.4
(1.7
(5.5

(22.7
1.8

(20.1

1.0
—
1.0

(115.0
(51.4

(143.6

(147.3
(254.8
(350.1

(95.9
(73.5

(172.8

(12.5
(3.9

(17.8

(4.7
(3.3

(15.0

(1.3
(1.6
(1.8

(2.6
(2.6
(5.2

(90.7
(241.5
(294.1

(0.1
(62.0
(61.9

0.5
(2.5
1.4

(4.2
0.9

(4.0

0.0
—
0.0

(12.2
75.1
40.0

(5.5
52.6
(6.0

1.1
(2.6
1.9

(3.1
(4.1
(5.9

3.1
1.4

11.5

(0.6
(1.2
(3.0

(3.2
4.1
0.8

(0.4
39.1
(0.5

(0.3
(4.2
(4.5

(0.8
(2.1
(3.0

(6.8
36.3
29.5

—
—
—

(21.2
39.4
18.1

(45.2
(68.6

(113.3

(19.6
18.6
(0.9

1.0
(0.7
0.3

2.5
7.6

10.2

(0.8
(0.2
(1.0

(1.9
14.7
12.7

(8.4
(8.5

(16.4

(0.1
10.1
11.0

0.0
0.2
2.3

(9.4
33.9
25.0

—
—
—

(35.4
22.7

(12.3

(45.1
(80.1

(119.5

(19.9
26.0
1.4

2.0
1.0
2.2

2.1
5.0
7.9

0.2
1.0
4.0

(4.0
3.6
1.1

(6.3
(23.5
(17.3

(0.2
(14.3
(15.6

(0.9
(2.4
(5.3

2.5
2.4
4.4

—
—
—

14.1
16.6
30.4

(0.1
11.4
6.2

0.3
(7.3
(2.4

(0.9
(1.7
(1.9

0.3
2.6
2.2

(1.0
(1.2
(5.0

2.0
11.0
11.6

(2.0
14.9
0.8
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Deposits
Breakdown of Deposits

Billions of yen

March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Liquid Deposits※:
Domestic ................................................................................................................ ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000
International ...........................................................................................................

Total ..................................................................................................................

Time Deposits:
Domestic ................................................................................................................
International ...........................................................................................................

Total ..................................................................................................................

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit:
Domestic ................................................................................................................
International ...........................................................................................................

Total .................................................................................................................

Other:
Domestic ................................................................................................................
International ...........................................................................................................

Total .................................................................................................................

Total Deposits:
Domestic ................................................................................................................
International ...........................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................. ¥ 00,000,000 ¥00,000,000 ¥00,000,000

7,522.6
144.1

7,666.7

13,707.7
9,435.4

23,143.1

2,176.0
597.7

2,773.7

567.8
2,813.4
3,381.3

23,974.1
12,990.9
36,965.0

7,738.9
155.7

7,894.6

12,852.8
10,148.2
23,001.1

2,872.0
1,012.4
3,884.4

672.3
2,826.6
3,498.9

24,136.1
14,143.0
38,279.1

8,148.2

46.5

8,194.7

12,996.9

6,482.6

19,479.5

2,609.6

516.3

3,125.9

603.5

3,038.8

3,642.3

24,358.4

10,084.2

34,442.7

Market Transactions
Breakdown of Net of Other Operating Income and Commissions

Billions of yen

Years ended March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Foreign Exchange Sales Income:
Domestic .............................................................................................................................. ¥000,000,000 ¥0,000,000 ¥0,000,000
International .......................................................................................................................... )

Total .............................................................................................................................. )

Net Gains on Trading Account Securities:
Domestic ..............................................................................................................................
International ..........................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................

Net Gains on Sales of Bonds:
Domestic ..............................................................................................................................
International ..........................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................

Others:
Domestic .............................................................................................................................. ) 0,000,000) 0,000,000)
International .......................................................................................................................... ) ) )

Total .............................................................................................................................. ) ) )

Total:
Domestic ..............................................................................................................................
International .......................................................................................................................... )

Total ................................................................................................................................

—
(8.0
(8.0

6.2
—
6.2

100.9
4.4

105.3

(1.5
(1.0
(2.5

105.5
(4.6

100.9

—
6.6
6.6

1.0
—
1.0

30.5
5.6

36.2

(0.0
(6.6
(6.6

31.6
5.6

37.2

—
1,762.5
1,762.5

…
…
…

5,842.9
1,938.8
7,781.7

(394.9
(917.8

(1,312.8

5,447.9
2,783.4
8,231.4

Breakdown of Adjusted General & Administrative Expenses

Billions of yen

Years ended March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Salaries, Allowances .................................................................................................................... ¥000,000 ¥000,000 ¥000,000
Retirement Allowances ..............................................................................................................
Transfer to Reserve for Retirement Allowance ...........................................................................
Social Contributions ...................................................................................................................
Depreciation ...............................................................................................................................
Lease on Buildings and Equipment .............................................................................................
Repair Expenses .........................................................................................................................
General Supplies .........................................................................................................................
Lighting and Heating Expenses ...................................................................................................
Travel Expenses ..........................................................................................................................
Telephone, Fax, etc. ...................................................................................................................
Advertising Expenses ..................................................................................................................
Taxes ..........................................................................................................................................
Other .........................................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................ ¥000,000 ¥000,000 ¥000,000

136.4
3.4
4.5

27.9
40.3
28.8
1.0
5.5
4.7
2.4
7.4
6.6

28.5
70.6

368.7

135.4
3.5
4.3

26.1
40.8
34.8
0.9
5.5
4.7
2.7
7.6
5.5

25.3
82.7

380.4

135.2
3.7
4.4

27.0
40.7
35.8
0.9
5.0
5.1
2.7
7.4
5.7

28.8
82.6

385.7

Note: ※Liquid deposits include current deposits, ordinary deposits, savings deposits and deposits at notice.

N
O

N
-C

O
N

S
O

LID
A
TED

N
O

N
-C

O
N

S
O

LI
D

A
TE

D



8382

Average Amount of Deposits

Billions of yen

March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Liquid Deposits※:
Domestic ................................................................................................................ ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000,0
International ...........................................................................................................

Total 

Time Deposits:
Domestic ................................................................................................................
International ...........................................................................................................

Total 

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit:
Domestic ................................................................................................................
International ...........................................................................................................

Total 

Other:
Domestic ................................................................................................................
International ...........................................................................................................

Total 

Total Deposits:
Domestic ................................................................................................................
International ...........................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................. ¥ 00,000.0 ¥ 00,000.0 ¥ 00,000,0

Breakdown of Depositors

5,407.3
134.9

5,542.3

14,883.8
11,243.8
26,127.7

1,760.6
825.3

2,585.9

354.1
2,470.7
2,824.9

22,406.0
14,674.8
37,080.9

6,241.4
171.8

6,413.3

14,267.3
10,824.0
25,091.4

2,322.9
849.7

3,172.7

320.5
2,780.6
3,101.2

23,152.3
14,626.3
37,778.7

6,905.0

158.6

7,063.7

13,683.5

10,572.6

24,256.1

2,393.2

893.1

3,286.3

312.3

2,838.5

3,150.9

23,294.1

14,463.0

37,757.2

Billions of yen

1998 1997 1996

March 31, Amount % of total Amount % of total Amount % of total

Individuals ............................................................... ¥00,000,000 0.00% ¥00,000,000 00.00% ¥00,000,000 000.0%
Corporations ............................................................

Total ............................................................... ¥00,000,000 0.00% ¥00,000,000 00000% ¥00,000,000 000.0%

44.21
55.79

100.00

10,496.2
13,243.7
23,740.0

48.93
51.07

100.00

11,027.1
11,511.4
22,538.5

49.96

50.04

100.00

11,391.8

11,410.9

22,802.7

Loans and Bills Discounted
Breakdown of Loans and Bills Discounted

Billions of yen

1998 1997 1996

Average End Average End Average End
March 31, balance balance balance balance balance balance

Loans on Notes:
Domestic ............................................................ ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0
International .......................................................

Total ..............................................................

Loans on Deeds:
Domestic ............................................................
International .......................................................

Total ..............................................................

Overdrafts:
Domestic ............................................................
International .......................................................

Total ..............................................................

Bills Discounted:
Domestic ............................................................
International .......................................................

Total ..............................................................

Total:
Domestic ............................................................
International .......................................................

Total .............................................................. ¥ 00,000.0 ¥ 00,000.0 ¥ 00,000.0 ¥ 00,000.0 ¥ 00,000.0 ¥ 00,000.0

.......................................................................

3,777.7
1,302.3
5,080.1

13,835.7
8,807.2

22,642.9

3,665.6
7.4

3,673.1

968.1
11.7

979.9

22,247.3
10,128.8
32,376.1

3,826.6
1,362.3
5,189.0

13,791.5
8,318.9

22,110.5

3,731.1
10.9

3,742.1

876.4
12.6

889.1

22,225.8
9,704.8

31,930.7

3,467.8
1,592.3
5,060.2

13,811.1
10,449.1
24,260.3

3,883.7
13.9

3,897.7

807.2
11.7

819.0

21,970.0
12,067.2
34,037.3

3,521.9
1,549.3
5,071.2

13,799.2
10,000.1
23,799.4

3,596.6
14.4

3,611.0

800.1
13.4

813.5

21,718.0
11,577.3
33,295.3

3,026.6
1,331.5
4,358.1

13,824.9
7,776.1

21,601.1

5,333.8
13.6

5,347.5

713.2
10.5

723.7

22,898.7
9,131.8

32,030.5

3,369.4
1,689.5
5,058.9

13,891.4
10,264.7
24,156.2

4,332.0
17.6

4,349.6

769.5
11.3

780.8

22,362.4
11,983.2
34,345.6

Loans to Retail Sectors

Billions of yen

1998 1997 1996

Number of End Number of End Number of End
March 31, customers balance customers balance customers balance

Total Loan Balance .................................................. 0,000% ¥ 00,000.0 0,000% ¥ 00,000.0 0,000% ¥ 00,000.0%
Loans to Small/Medium Businesses ..........................
% of Total Loans ...................................................... % % % % % %

.......................................................................
Notes: 1. “Number of customers” is shown in thousands.

2. Overseas branches and the Japan Offshore Market Account are not included.
3. The Bank’s domestic business is conducted mainly in two sectors: the retail sector, which includes small and medium-sized businesses and individual

customers, and the wholesale sector, which focuses on serving the large corporate customer base in Japan.

22,836.1
17,727.0

77.62

1,173
1,168
99.61

22,601.3
17,659.0

78.13

1,194
1,190
99.61

23,442.0
17,756.3

75.75

1,198
1,193
99.56

Note: ※Liquid deposits include current deposits, ordinary deposits, savings deposits and deposits at notice.

Note: Figures have not been adjusted for deposits in transit between the Bank’s head office and branches.
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Collateral Information

Billions of yen

March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Securities ..................................................................................................................... ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0
Commercial Claims .....................................................................................................
Commodities ...............................................................................................................
Real Estate ...................................................................................................................
Others .........................................................................................................................

Total Secured Loans ...........................................................................................
Guarantees ...................................................................................................................
Unsecured ...................................................................................................................

Total .................................................................................................................. ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0

521.1
813.7

—
4,542.8

667.1
6,544.7

13,593.6
12,237.7
32,376.1

480.9
919.6

—
4,143.7

923.5
6,467.9

13,862.0
13,707.2
34,037.3

486.5

825.0

—

3,716.9

1,042.1

6,070.7

13,711.7

12,248.0

32,030.5

Housing / Consumer Loans

Billions of yen

March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Housing Loans ............................................................................................................. ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0
Consumer Loans ..........................................................................................................

4,909.3
445.1

5,090.6
476.4

5,256.0

491.3

Loans to Developing Countries

Billions of yen

March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Number of Countries ..................................................................................................
Balance of Loans .......................................................................................................... ¥),000) ¥,0.000 ¥,000
Reserve for Loans to Developing Countries .................................................................
Balance of Loans as a Percentage of Total Assets............................................................ % % %

7
6.8
2.3
0.01

7
13.4
1.1
0.02

10

8.3

0.8

0.01

Major Lending Classifications 

Billions of yen

March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Domestic Offices (excludes loans booked in the Japan offshore market):

Manufacturing........................................................................................................................ ¥00,000) ¥00,000) ¥000,000)

Agriculture .............................................................................................................................

Forestry ..................................................................................................................................

Fisheries .................................................................................................................................

Mining ...................................................................................................................................

Construction ..........................................................................................................................

Utilities ..................................................................................................................................

Transportation and Communications......................................................................................

Wholesale and Retail..............................................................................................................

Finance and Insurance ............................................................................................................

Real Estate .............................................................................................................................

Services ..................................................................................................................................

Local Government .................................................................................................................

Individuals and Others............................................................................................................

Total Domestic .................................................................................................................

Overseas Offices (includes loans booked in the Japan offshore market):

Public Sector ..........................................................................................................................

Financial Institutions...............................................................................................................

Commerce and Industry .........................................................................................................

Others ....................................................................................................................................

Total Overseas .................................................................................................................

Total................................................................................................................................. ¥00,000) ¥00,000) ¥000,000)

2,747.6

67.7

2.2

7.5

31.0

1,057.8

237.7

901.0

3,534.3

2,120.9

2,323.3

4,477.2

187.4

5,139.9

22,836.1

286.1

2,137.9

6,981.3

134.5

9,539.9

32,376.1

2,601.3

64.8

2.7

6.2

25.9

1,082.9

216.3

978.5

3,452.6

1,893.6

2,230.0

4,489.3

176.5

5,380.1

22,601.3

305.3

2,388.9

8,602.1

139.5

11,435.9

34,037.3

3,016.8

61.7

2.5

10.8

27.6

1,094.0

54.0

985.2

3,656.2

2,119.9

2,271.9

4,369.2

167.8

5,603.7

23,442.0

264.5

1,549.3

6,668.1

106.4

8,588.4

32,030.5
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Breakdown of Loans by Purpose of Funds

Billions of yen

March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Funds for Capital Investment ....................................................................................... ¥00,000,00 ¥00,000,00 ¥00,000,0
Funds for Working Capital ..........................................................................................

Total .................................................................................................................. ¥00,000,00 ¥00,000,00 ¥000,000.

11,388.5
20,987.6
32,376.1

11,709.1
22,328.1
34,037.3

11,550.1
20,480.3
32,030.4
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Book Value and Market Value Information
Market Prices of Marketable Securities

Billions of yen

1998 1997 1996

Book Market Unrealized gain (loss) Book Market Unrealized Book Market Unrealized
March 31, value value value value gain (loss) value value gain (loss)

Listed Securities 

Trading Account Securities:

Bonds ................................................ ¥0,000.0 ¥00,00.0 ¥(000.0 ¥.(00.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥000.0

Investment Securities:

Bonds ................................................

Stocks ................................................ )

Others ...............................................

of which Foreign Affiliates ................. )

Total Investment Securities ................ )

Total ............................................ ¥ 0,000.0 ¥ 00,00.0 ¥ 000.0) ¥000.0 ¥ 0,000.0 ¥ 0,000.0 ¥ 000.0 ¥ 0,000.0 ¥ 0,000.0 ¥ 000.0

Unlisted Securities (estimate) (estimate) (estimate)

Trading Account Securities:

Bonds ................................................ ¥0,000.0 ¥00,00.0 ¥000.0 ¥00.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥000.0

Investment Securities:

Bonds ................................................ )

Stocks ................................................ )

Others ............................................... ) ) )

Total Investment Securities ................ ) ) )

Total ............................................ ¥0,000.0 ¥00,00.0 ¥000.0) ¥000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥000.0) ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥000.0)

Notes: 1. Bonds include Japanese national government bonds, Japanese local government bonds and Japanese corporate bonds and financial debentures. The market
prices of listed securities are primarily calculated by using the closing prices on the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

2. The estimated market values of unlisted securities are determined as follows:
Securities traded over the counter: transaction prices announced by the Japan Securities Dealers Association.
Publicly placed bonds: prices calculated using indicated yield announced by the Japan Securities Dealers Association.
Securities of investment trust: market prices announced by authorized fund management companies.

3. The book values of securities not included in the two tables above are primarily as follows:

Billions of yen

March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Trading Account Securities:

Unlisted Bonds (redemption period less than one year) ............................................ ¥00.00 ¥000,0 ¥000,0

Investment Securities:

Unlisted Notes .........................................................................................................

Unlisted Bonds (redemption period less than one year) ............................................

Unlisted Foreign Bonds ...........................................................................................

Unlisted Foreign Stocks ...........................................................................................

393.6

488.2

26.8

99.5

375.3

61.3

451.9

5.2

88.5

385.4

—

506.2

13.5

152.8

415.8

0.0

7.3

970.4

2.6

(1.7

980.4

980.5

0.0

(18.5

37.8

(46.2

(26.9

(26.9

1.6

347.9

3,966.1

89.7

2.6

4,403.9

4,405.5

0.5

946.6

93.0

121.5

1,161.2

1,161.8

1.5

340.6

2,995.7

87.1

4.3

3,423.4

3,425.0

0.5

965.2

55.2

167.7

1,188.2

1,188.7

0.0

14.1

335.2

35.5

19.1

384.9

384.9

0.0

12.7

9.2

(53.8

(31.7

(31.7

1.7

451.1

3,421.9

134.2

25.7

4,007.2

4,009.0

1.8

815.6

67.8

92.0

975.5

977.3

1.7

436.9

3,086.6

98.7

6.6

3,622.3

3,624.0

1.7

802.8

58.5

145.8

1,007.2

1,009.0

—

0.2

434.1

2.5

2.4

436.8

436.8

—

0.4

23.5

2.0

26.0

26.0

—

7.3

(248.7

14.0

12.5

(227.4

(227.4

—

10.0

(10.6

(1.3

(1.9

(1.9

—

602.6

3,021.8

73.9

20.0

3,698.4

3,698.4

—

832.8

50.1

116.4

999.5

999.5

—

595.2

3,270.6

59.9

7.5

3,925.8

3,925.8

—

822.8

60.8

117.7

1,001.4

1,001.4

Securities
Breakdown of Securities Holdings

Billions of yen

March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Japanese Government Bonds:
Domestic ................................................................................................................ ¥0,000,000 ¥0,000,000 ¥0,000,000
International ...........................................................................................................

Total ..................................................................................................................

Japanese Local Government Bonds:
Domestic ................................................................................................................
International ...........................................................................................................

Total ..................................................................................................................

Corporate Bonds:
Domestic ................................................................................................................
International ...........................................................................................................

Total ..................................................................................................................

Corporate Stocks:
Domestic ................................................................................................................
International ...........................................................................................................

Total ..................................................................................................................

Other:
Domestic ................................................................................................................
International ...........................................................................................................

Total ..................................................................................................................

Total Securities:
Domestic ................................................................................................................
International ...........................................................................................................

Total .................................................................................................................. ¥0,000,000 ¥0,000,000 ¥0,000,000

1,054.1
—

1,054.1

287.0
—

287.0

512.6
—

512.6

3,184.4
—

3,184.4

215.9
544.9
760.8

5,254.2
544.9

5,799.1

1,054.7
—

1,054.7

235.0
—

235.0

411.3
—

411.3

3,292.0
—

3,292.0

230.3
550.8
781.1

5,223.6
550.8

5,774.4

1,090.2

—

1,090.2

368.9

—

368.9

481.0

—

481.0

3,474.6

—

3,474.6

195.6

640.2

835.8

5,610.5

640.2

6,250.7
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Interest Rate Transactions

Billions of yen
1998 1997

Contract value Contract value
Term over Option Market Unrealized Term over Option Market Unrealized

March 31, Total one year premium* value gain (loss) Total one year premium* value gain (loss)

Listed
Interest Futures:

Sell ................................................................ ¥00,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥00.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥0000.0) ¥00,000.0 0,000 ¥0.0) ¥000.0 ¥ (0.0)
Buy .............................................................. )

Interest Rate Option:
Sell Call ......................................................

Put....................................................... ) )
Buy Call ...................................................... ) )

Put....................................................... )
Over the Counter
FRA:

Sell ...............................................................
Buy ..............................................................

Interest Rate Swap:
Receive Fixed Pay Floating ..........................
Receive Floating Pay Fixed .......................... ) )
Receive Floating Pay Floating ......................
Receive Fixed Pay Fixed ..............................

Interest Rate Option:
Sell Call ......................................................

Put.......................................................
Buy Call ......................................................

Put.......................................................
Others:

Sell ............................................................ )
Buy ............................................................ )

Total ......................................................... 000.0 ¥0000.0)
......................................................................

Notes: 1.*In millions of yen. Option premiums are included in the balance sheet.
2. Calculation of market value.

The market values of listed securities are calculated using the closing prices on the Tokyo Financial Futures Exchange, etc.
3. Market value and evaluation profit and loss include transactiions made for the purpose of hedging on-balance sheet transactions.
4. Interest rate swap market value and evaluation profit and loss includes accrued interest of 124,124 millions of yen entered in the Statement of Income.
5. Details of interest rate swap notional amounts and average rates according to when due are as follows:

Billions of yen
More than

One year one year to Over
or loss three years three years Total

Receive Fixed Pay Floating:
Notional Amount .................................................................................................. ¥31,864.0 ¥14,675.9 ¥2,365.3 ¥48,905.3
Average Receive Rate .......................................................................................... 4.91% 4.39% 3.89% 4.73%
Average Pay Rate .................................................................................................. 4.29% 3.59% 1.82% 4.01%

Receive Floating Pay Fixed:
Notional Amount .................................................................................................. 35,486.6 11,401.4 2,222.5 49,110.5
Average Receive Rate .......................................................................................... 4.17% 2.96% 2.44% 3.89%
Average Pay Rate .................................................................................................. 4.82% 4.31% 4.50% 4.72%

Receive Floating Pay Floating:
Notional Amount .................................................................................................. 88.3 48.7 45.1 182.1
Average Receive Rate .......................................................................................... 5.62% 4.62% 8.74% 6.05%
Average Pay Rate .................................................................................................. 5.27% 4.03% 5.36% 4.95%

Receive Fixed Pay Fixed:
Notional Amount .................................................................................................. — — 5.9 5.9
Average Receive Rate .......................................................................................... — — 1.34% 1.34%
Average Pay Rate .................................................................................................. — — 1.33% 1.33%

Notes: 6. Derivative transactions included in trading account transactions are valued at the market price and the evaluation profit or loss calculated is included 
in the Statement of Income.  Therefore it is not included in the following table.
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17.9
4.9

—
—
—
—

49.7
49.7

27,958.6
27,119.2

392.4

157.0
142.0
79.5
86.5

395.0
565.5

....

137.4
126.6

65.8
115.4
84.8

215.1

1,019.2
1,018.6

64,737.2
66,654.9

432.9

247.0
250.0
185.9
192.6

581.4
801.6

....

(0.2
0.0

0.0
(0.0
(0.0
0.0

....

....

1,001.7
(1,048.0

0.1
0.0

—
—
—
—

2.1
(2.3

(46.6

182.1
115.8

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

—
—

1,001.7
(1,048.0

0.1
0.0

—
—
—
—

(0.5
0.3
....

....

....
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48
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....

....

....

....
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—
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13,623.9
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5.9
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—
—
—

93.9
124.1

....

181.9
115.7

274.5
221.7
39.6

184.9

—
—

48,905.3
49,110.5
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5.9
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The contract value, etc. of derivative transactions in trading account transactions is as follows:

Billions of yen
Contract Option Market

March 31, 1998 value premium* value

Listed
Interest Futures:

Sell .......................................................................................................................................... 0¥02,283.8 ¥ 14,410 ¥ 2,283.8
Buy ........................................................................................................................................

Interest Rate Option:
Sell Call ................................................................................................................................

Put .................................................................................................................................
Buy Call ................................................................................................................................

Put .................................................................................................................................
Over the Counter
FRA:

Sell .........................................................................................................................................
Buy ........................................................................................................................................ )

Interest Rate Swap:
Receive Fixed Pay Floating ....................................................................................................
Receive Floating Pay Fixed .................................................................................................... )
Receive Floating Pay Floating ................................................................................................ )
Receive Fixed Pay Fixed ........................................................................................................

Interest Rate Option:
Sell Call ................................................................................................................................ )

Put ................................................................................................................................. )
Buy Call ................................................................................................................................

Put .................................................................................................................................
Others:

Sell ......................................................................................................................................... )
Buy ........................................................................................................................................

Total ..............................................................................................................................

Note: * In millions of yen. Option premiums are the original premiums received/paid relating to the contract value, etc.

Currency Transactions

Billions of yen
1998 1997

Contract value Contract value
Term over Market Unrealized Term over Market Unrealized

March 31, Total one year value gain (loss) Total one year value gain (loss)

Over the Counter
Currency Swap:

US$ .............................................................. ¥2,422.4 ¥0,000.0 ¥(000.0 ¥(000.0 ¥2,422.4 ¥2,422.4
STG £ ......................................................... ) )
DM ..............................................................
A$ ................................................................ ) )
Others .......................................................... ) )

Total ......................................................... ¥2,422.4 ¥2,422.4 ¥(000.0 ¥(000.0 ¥2,422.4 ¥2,422.4
......................................................................

Notes: 1. Market value and evaluation profit and loss include transactions made for the purpose of hedging on-balance sheet transactions.
2. Market value and the evaluation profit and loss includes accrued interest of 4,094 millions of yen entered in the Statement of Income.
3. Derivative transactions included in trading account transactions are valued at the market price and the evaluation profit or loss calculated is included in the

Statement of Income.  Therefore it is not indicated in the above table.
The contract value, etc. of derivative transaction in trading account transactions is as follows:

Billions of yen
Contract Market

March 31, 1998 value value

Over the Counter
Currency Swap:

US$ .......................................................................................................................................................................... 0,000.0 0,000.0)
DM .......................................................................................................................................................................... )
A$ ............................................................................................................................................................................ )
Other ....................................................................................................................................................................... )

Total ................................................................................................................................................................. )

(15.7
(1.2

(16.4
(1.0

(34.5

3,338.8
56.9

639.3
159.2

4,194.3

....

....

....

....

....

....

....

....

....

....

....

....

2,633.1
1.4

62.1
765.4
196.2

3,658.3

3,591.8
83.7

162.3
810.2
362.4

5,010.5

157.4
(10.2

4.7
(0.4

(127.3

24.1

157.4
(10.2

4.7
(0.4

(127.3

24.1

1,100.4
1.9

11.2
4.8

111.1

1,229.7

2,422.4
222.8
177.9
24.1

528.2

3,375.5

2,285.2
2,167.4

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
(0.0

802.1
(746.4

(0.8
9.8

(18.6
(2.5
10.2
2.8

(4.0
3.4
....

....

....

56
92
72
38

....

....

....

....

....

....

5,568
5,549
3,996
4,231

11,989
14,410

....

02,283.8
2,165.4

152.2
268.9
244.5
31.8

13.7
22.2

42,653.3
40,690.1

480.0
26.1

524.9
572.0
445.1
467.0

822.0
1,077.5

....
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Notes: 4. In a foreign exchange contract, currency options, etc. are revalued at the end of the fiscal year.  
The profit or loss calculated is included in the statement of income.

5. The table below indicates the contract value of derivative transactions relating to currency transactions which are revalued.

Billions of yen
1998 1997

Contract Option Contract Option
March 31, value premium* value premium*

Listed
Currency Futures:

Sell .................................................. ¥ 00000— ¥000.... ¥ 00000— ¥000....
Buy .................................................

Currency Option:
Sell Call ........................................

Put .........................................
Buy Call ........................................

Put .........................................
Over the Counter
Foreign Exchange Contract:

Sell ..................................................
Buy .................................................

Currency Option:
Sell Call ........................................

Put .........................................
Buy Call ........................................

Put .........................................
Others:

Sell ..................................................
Buy .................................................

Total .....................................

Note: * In millions of yen. Option premiums are included in the balance sheet.

Securities Transactions

Billions of yen
1998 1997

Contract value Contract value
Term over Option Market Unrealized Term over Option Market Unrealized

March 31, Total one year premium* value gain (loss) Total one year premium* value gain (loss)

Listed
Bond Futures:

Sell ......................................................... ¥00 ..... ¥ .... ¥00 ¥(0.0 ¥00 ..... ¥ .... ¥00 ¥(0.
Buy .........................................................

Bond Futures Option:
Sell Call ...................................................

Put ....................................................
Buy Call ................................................... )

Put .................................................... )
Total ................................................ ¥(0.0) (0.

.........................................................
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0.0
0.0
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—
—
—
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—
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—
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4.0
....

000....
....

—
—
—
—

....

....

30,358
7,404

30,893
8,124

....

....

....

00000—
12.1

—
—
—
—

29,477.9
14,200.5

863.5
821.3
863.5
768.7

—
—
....

000....
....

—
—
—
—

....

....

37,329
13,809
35,686
14,936

....

....

....

00000—
22.3

—
—
—
—

15,227.7
27,326.8

1,124.1
1,342.0
1,059.4
1,398.6

—
—

....

Notes: 1. * In millions of yen. Option premiums are included in the balance sheet.
2. Calculation of market value.

The market values of listed securities are calculated using the closing prices on the Tokyo Stock Exchange, etc.
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Bond-Related Transactions

Billions of yen
1998 1997

Contract value Contract value
Term over Option Market Unrealized Term over Option Market Unrealized

March 31, Total one year premium* value gain (loss) Total one year premium* value gain (loss)

Listed
Bond Futures:

Sell ......................................................... ¥ 000.0 ..... ¥ ..... ¥000.0 ¥ (0.0) ¥000.0 ..... ¥ ..... ¥000.0 ¥(0.0)
Buy .........................................................

Bond Futures Option:
Sell Call ...................................................

Put ....................................................
Buy Call ...................................................

Put ....................................................

Over the Counter
Bond-Related Option:

Sell Call ................................................... )
Put ....................................................

Buy Call ...................................................
Put ....................................................

Others:
Sell .........................................................
Buy .........................................................

Total ................................................ ¥(0.0) ¥ (0.0)

.........................................................

Billions of yen
Contract Option Market

March 31, 1998 value premium* value

Listed
Bond Futures:

Sell ...................................................................................................................................... 0¥00.0 ¥— ¥00.0
Buy ......................................................................................................................................

Bond Futures Option:
Sell Call ................................................................................................................................

Put .................................................................................................................................
Buy Call ................................................................................................................................

Put .................................................................................................................................

Over the Counter
Bond Related Swap:

Sell Call ................................................................................................................................
Put .................................................................................................................................

Buy Call ................................................................................................................................
Put .................................................................................................................................

Others:
Sell ......................................................................................................................................
Buy ......................................................................................................................................

Total ..............................................................................................................................

21.3
9.7

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

—
—
....

....

....

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

—
—
....

21.3
9.7

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

—
—
....

(0.8
0.3

—
—
—
—

....

....

....

....

....

....
(0.4

269.6
103.8

—
—
—
—

....

....

....

....

....

....

....

....

....

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
16

....

....

....

—
—

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

—
—
....

268.7
103.5

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
1.2

—
—
....

(0.7
—

—
0.0
—
0.0

(0.0
—
0.0
—

—
—

(0.8

118.4
—

—
0.0
—
0.0

0.4
—
—
—

—
—

....

....

....

—
2

—
3

370
—
8

—

....

....

....

—
—

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

—
—

....

117.6
—

—
4.2
—
3.6

116.6
—
3.9
—

—
—

....

Notes: 1. * In millions of yen. Option premiums are included in the balance sheet.
2. Derivative transactions included in trading account transactions are valued at the market price and the evaluation profit or loss calculated is included in the

Statement of Income.  Therefore it is not indicated in the following table.
The contract value, etc. of derivative transaction in trading account transactions is as follows:

Note: * In millions of yen.  Option premiums are the original premiums received/paid relating to the contract value, etc.
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Facilities and Premises/Personnel
Number of Branches

March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Domestic:
Branches ............................................................................................................................... 000 000 000
Sub-branches .........................................................................................................................

Overseas:
Branches ...............................................................................................................................
Sub-branches .........................................................................................................................
(Representative offices) ......................................................................................................... (21) ) )

Total ................................................................................................................................

Investment in Facilities

Billions of yen

Expected
March 31, 1998 Budget Paid expenditure

Head Office ................................................................................................................................ ¥00.0 ¥0.00 ¥00.0
Branches .....................................................................................................................................
Others ........................................................................................................................................
Office Appliances ........................................................................................................................
Other Office Equipment .............................................................................................................

Total ...................................................................................................................................... ¥00.0 ¥0.00 ¥00.0

Number of ATMs

March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Cash Dispensers ........................................................................................................................... 0,000 0,000 0,000
Automatic Tellers .......................................................................................................................
Automatic Passbook Entry Machines ..........................................................................................

Total ..................................................................................................................................... 0,000 0,000 0,000

Personnel

Number of Average Average length Average
March 31, 1998 employees age of employment monthly salary (yen)

Administrative Staff:
Male ................................................................................................... 0,000,000 0,000,000 0,000,000 ¥000,000
Female ...............................................................................................

Sub-total or Average ......................................................................
General Operating Staff:

Male ...................................................................................................
Female ...............................................................................................

Sub-total or Average ......................................................................
Total or Average ........................................................................... 0,000,000 0,000,000 0,000,000 ¥000,000

594,495
264,550
484,490

367,003
—

367,003
480,712

17-5
9-9

14-10

17-0
—

17-0
14-11

39-1
29-11
36-1

53-7
—

53-7
36-7

9,429
4,716

14,145

470
—

470
14,615

547
3,240

369
4,156

547
3,325

369
4,241

519
3,399

369
4,287

0.3
11.0
5.5

19.9
3.1

39.8

0.4
8.0
4.0
0.0
0.0

12.4

0.7
19.0
9.6

19.9
3.1

52.3

289
55

21
1

(23
366

290
49

24
1

(22
364

290
42

25
1

(21
358

years - months years - months
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Notes: 1. “Total number of employees” does not include non-regular or locally hired staff at the overseas offices which total 2,737 as of March 31, 1998.
2. “Average monthly salary” was calculated on the basis of total salary paid in March plus overtime allowance. This figure does not include annual bonus

payments.
3. The stipulated age of retirement for employees is 60 years of age. 

However, in certain cases where deemed necessary by the Bank, employees may be rehired as a non-regular employee for a fixed term.

Asset Liability Management
Composition of Time Deposits by Type and Maturity

Billions of yen

Three Two
months to Six One year years to

Less than less than months to to less less than Three
three six less than than two three years and

March 31, 1998 months months one year years years over Total

Time Deposits with Deregulated
Interest Rates (fixed) .................. ¥00,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥1000.0 ¥000,00. ¥000.0 ¥0,000,00

Time Deposits with Deregulated
Interest Rates (floating) ..............

Total .................................. ¥0,000,00 ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥1000.0 ¥000,00. ¥000.0 ¥0,000,00

Note: Time deposits outstanding do not include installment time deposits.

Composition of Loans by Type and Maturity

Billions of yen

More than More than
More than three years five years

One year one year to to five to seven Over seven Unspecified
March 31, 1998 or less three years years years years term Total

Floating Interest Rate.................... ¥00,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.00
Fixed Interest Rate ......................

Total .................................. ¥00,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.0 ¥0,000.00

Composition of Securities Holdings by Type and Maturity

Billions of yen

More than More than More than More than
One year one year to three years five years seven years Over Unspecified

March 31, 1998 or less three years to five years to seven years to 10 years 10 years Term Total

Japanese Government Bonds ............... ¥ 00.0 ¥ 0 000.0 ¥ 00.0 ¥ 000.0 ¥ 000.0 ¥ 00.0 ¥ 0,000.0 ¥ 0,000.0
Japanese Local Government Bonds .......
Corporate Bonds .................................
Corporate Stocks .................................
Other ..................................................

Foreign Corporate Bonds ................
Foreign Corporate Stocks ................

Securities Lent......................................

1,087.9
368.9
481.0

3,474.6
835.8
201.4
438.5

2.2

—
—
—

3,474.6
572.3

—
438.5

—

—
2.6
—
....

25.0
25.0

....
—

652.5
305.5
220.0

....
33.1
9.9
....
—

337.6
7.7

19.9
....

31.1
11.9

....
—

84.6
15.3
61.6

....
45.5
32.8

....
—

12.8
26.8

122.0
....

32.5
27.4

....
2.2

0.1
10.8
57.4

....
96.1
94.2

....
—

....

....
32,030.5

5,359.9
—

5,359.9

5,867.4
2,742.2
8,609.6

951.3
350.2

1,301.5

1,888.3
1,146.6
3,035.0

1,683.9
881.5

2,565.4

....

....
11,158.8

12,935.6

5.6
19,467.7

291.0

0.0
295.8

1,496.5

0.9
1,497.5

1,043.9

1.4
1,045.8

2,447.9

2.1
2,599.4

1,919.4

0.5
2,703.4

5,736.7

0.5
11,325.7
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Ratio of Loans to Deposits

Billions of yen
March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Loans:
Domestic ............................................................................................................................... ¥0k,000.0 ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0
International ..........................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................

Deposits:
Domestic ...............................................................................................................................
International ..........................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................

Ratio of Loans to Deposits:
Domestic ............................................................................................................................... 00.00% 00.00% 00.00%
International ..........................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................ 00.00% 00.00% 00.00%

Average Balance Outstanding During Year:
Domestic ............................................................................................................................... 00.00% 00.00% 00.00%
International ..........................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................ 00.00% 00.00% 00.00%

Deposit / Loan Balance per Office

Billions of yen
March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Deposits per Office:
Domestic ............................................................................................................................... ¥000.0 ¥000.0 ¥000.0
Overseas ................................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................

Loans per Office:
Domestic ...............................................................................................................................
Overseas ................................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................

Number of Offices:
Domestic ...............................................................................................................................
Overseas ................................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................

Note: Sub-branches are not included in the number of offices.

Deposit / Loan Balance per Employee

Billions of yen
March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Deposits per Employee:
Domestic ............................................................................................................................... ¥ 0.0 ¥0.0 ¥0.0
Overseas.................................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................

Loans per Employee:
Domestic ...............................................................................................................................
Overseas.................................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................

Note: Number of employees denotes average number of employees for the year. The number of employees for domestic offices includes head office employees.

1.8
6.0
2.3

1.5
5.5
2.0

1.9
6.3
2.4

1.6
6.2
2.1

2.1
3.2
2.2

1.7
4.2
2.1

92.1
491.6
119.2

79.0
454.0
104.4

289
21

310

91.7
485.7
121.9

77.9
476.3
108.3

290
24

314

96.1
262.2
109.3

80.8
343.2
101.6

290
25

315

22,247.3
10,128.8
32,376.1

23,974.1
12,990.9
36,965.0

92.79
77.96
87.58

99.19
66.13
86.11

21,970.0
12,067.2
34,037.3

24,136.1
14,143.0
38,279.1

91.02
85.32
88.91

93.80
79.15
88.13

22,898.7
9,131.8

32,030.5

24,358.4
10,084.2
34,442.7

94.00
90.55
92.99

96.00
82.85
90.96 N
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Principal Ratios
Capital Ratio

Billions of yen
March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Tier I Capital ............................................................................................................................... ¥ 00,000.0 ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0
Tier II Capital:

Unrealized Gains on Securities, after 55% Discount ...............................................................
Revaluted Gains on Securities, after 55% Discount ................................................................
Reserve for Possible Loan Losses ...........................................................................................
Subordinated Term Debt and Other ......................................................................................

Total.................................................................................................................................
Tier II Capital Includible as Qualifying Capital ......................................................................

Total Qualifying Capital ............................................................................................................. ¥ 00,000.0 ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0

Risk-Adjusted Assets:
On-Balance Sheet Items ........................................................................................................
Off-Balance Sheet Items ........................................................................................................
Amount related to Market Risk Equivalent ...........................................................................

Total................................................................................................................................. ¥ 00,000.0 ¥00,000.0 ¥00,000.0

Tier I Capital Ratio ..................................................................................................................... % % %
Total Capital Ratio......................................................................................................................

Notes: 1. Figures in this table were calculated on a consolidated basis and in accordance with guidelines established by the Ministry of Finance.
2. The reserve for possible loan losses excluded the specific reserve for fiscal 1991 and fiscal 1992. Beginning in fiscal 1993, the reserve for 

possible loan losses excludes both the specific reserve for possible loan losses and the reserve for loans to developing countries.

Return on Equity and Assets

Years ended March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Net Income as a Percentage of:
Average Total Assets, excluding Customers’ Liabilities for Acceptances and
Guarantees (ROA) ............................................................................................................... % % %

Average Shareholders’ Equity ................................................................................................. % % %
Declared Cash Dividends per Share (in yen):

Common Stock......................................................................................................................
Preferred Stock.......................................................................................................................

Margin on Funds

Years ended March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Yield on Funds (Yield on Interest Earning Assets) –  A :
Domestic ............................................................................................................................... 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
International ..........................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................

Cost of Funds (Yield on Interest Bearing Liabilities) –  B :
Domestic ...............................................................................................................................
International ..........................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................

Overall Margin on Funds ( A –  B ):
Domestic ...............................................................................................................................
International ..........................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................ 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

2.89
10.07
5.48

2.50
9.09
4.94

0.39
0.98
0.53

2.39
8.50
4.71

2.20
7.63
4.30

0.19
0.86
0.40

2.24
8.02
4.44

2.18
7.50
4.27

0.06
0.52
0.17

—
—

¥6.50
—

0.11
3.59

¥8.50
3.75

—
—

¥8.50
7.50

1,641.3

441.2
—

135.8
1,142.7
1,719.8
1,641.3
3,282.7

35,199.7
4,025.3

—
39,225.1

4.18
8.36

1,950.6

174.2
—

141.9
1,485.2
1,801.5
1,801.5
3,752.1

36,251.0
4,412.8

—
40,663.8

4.79
9.22

1,809.8

—
146.9
120.7

1,476.9
1,744.6
1,744.6
3,554.5

33,802.9
3,614.6

341.9
37,759.5

4.79
9.41



Stock Information
Stockholder Information (Common stock)

Number of Number of stocks held 
March 31, 1998 stockholders (thousands)

Central/Local Government ......................................................................................................... 00,000 0,000,000 (000.00%)
Financial Institutions ...................................................................................................................
Securities Companies ..................................................................................................................
Other Corporate Entities ............................................................................................................
Foreign Corporations, etc. ..........................................................................................................
Individuals and Other .................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................

Breakdown of Stockholders’ Interests (Common stock)

Number of Number of stocks held 
March 31, 1998 stockholders (thousands)

1,000 share units and above ......................................................................................................... 00,000 (000.00%) 000,000,000 (000.00%)
500 share units and above ............................................................................................................
100 share units and above ............................................................................................................
50 share units and above ..............................................................................................................
10 share units and above ..............................................................................................................
5 share units and above ................................................................................................................
1 share unit and above .................................................................................................................

Total ................................................................................................................................ 00,000 (000.00% (000.00%)

Fuji Bank Stock Price (Common stock)

Yen

Years ended March 31, 1998 1997 1996

Highest ....................................................................................................................................... ¥ 0,000 ¥ 0,000 ¥ 0,000
Lowest ........................................................................................................................................

Note: Fuji Bank stocks are listed on the first section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

2,450
1,650

2,440
1,140

1,840
440

2,336,434 (080.97%)
134,485 (004.66%)
170,267 (005.90%)
41,985 (001.45%)

103,870 (003.60%)
42,635 (001.48%)
56,024 (001.94%)

2,885,700 (100.00%)

349 (000.74%)
188 (000.40%)
749 (001.59%)
615 (001.31%)

5,998 (012.74%)
6,694 (014.22%)

32,486 (069.00%)
47,079 (100.00%)

(000.20%)
(030.40%)
(000.95%)
(057.30%)
(004.75%)
(006.40%)
(100.00%)

5,830
877,330
27,248

1,653,501
137,069
184,722

2,885,700

4
251
101

6,382
487

39,854
47,079
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